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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, DC 20549
FORM 10-K
Annual Report Pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) efSkcurities Exchange Act of 1934
For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2012

Commission file number: 001-31972

TELKONET, INC.
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its arart

Utah 87-0627421
(State or Other Jurisdiction of Incorporation gg@nization) (I.R.S. Employer Identification No
10200 Innovation Drive Suite 300, Milwaukee, ' 53226
(Address of Principal Executive Office (Zip Code)

(414) 2230473

(Registrant’s Telephone Number, Including Area Qode
Securities Registered pursuant to section 12(fhefct: None

Title of each clas Name of each exchange on which reqistt
Common Stock, $0.001 par val None

Securities Registered pursuant to section 12(¢)efRict: Common Stock, $.001 par value

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a welbwn seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405%ed®#turities Act.0  Yes No
Indicate by check mark if the registrant is notuieed to file reports pursuant to Section 13 orti®ecl5(b) of the Act. 0  Yes No
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant @l filed all reports required to be filed by Secti8 or 15(d) of the Securities and Exche
Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (ordoch shorter period that the registrant was reduivefile such reports), and (2) has t
subject to such filing requirements for the pastiags. Yes O No
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant lasmitted electronically and posted on its corpovedbsite, if any, every Interactive Data |
required to be submitted and posted pursuant te BR0b of Regulation $-during the preceding 12 months (or for such ggreriod that tt
registrant was required to submit and post suelil Yes O No
Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquéletrs pursuant to Item 405 of RegulatiorkSs not contained in this form, and no disclo:
will be contained, to the best of Registrarithowledge, in definitive proxy or information t&ments incorporated by reference in Part |
this Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10EK.
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a-acelerated filer or a smaller report
company. See the definitions of “large accelerdiled,” “accelerated filer” and “smaller reportingpmpany” in Rule 122 of the Exchancg
Act. (Check one):

Large accelerated filedI Accelerated file™d

Non-accelerated fileO Smaller reporting comparlx]
(Do not check if a smaller reporting compa

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantskell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the BExgje Act)0  Yes No

Aggregate market value of the voting stock helchby-affiliates (based upon the closing sale price ol$@er share on the Over the Cou
Bulletin Board) of the registrant as of June 29, 20517,836,344.

Number of outstanding shares of the regis’s par value $0.001 common stock as of March 2232008,103,001.




TELKONET, INC.

FORM 10-K
INDEX
_Page

Part |
Item 1. Description of Busines 1
Item 1A. Risk Factors 11
Item 2. Properties 19
Item 3. Legal Proceeding 20
Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosure 20

Part Il
Item 5. Market for Registra’'s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters angid®@n’s Purchases of Securiti 20
Item 6. Selected Financial Da 21
Item 7. Managemer's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditiod &®esults of Operatior 21
ltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About MarRisk. 29
Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary | 29
Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants @ouing and Financial Disclosu 29
Item 9A. Controls and Procedur 29
Item 9B. Other Informatior 30

Part 111
Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Govaos 31
Item 11. Executive Compensatic 31
Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners Mahagement and Related Stockholder Mai 31
Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactionsarettor Independenc 32
Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Servi 32

Part IV

Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedi 33




PART |
ITEM 1. DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS.

Some of the statements contained in this Annuadi®ep Form 10K discuss future expectations, contain projectiohgesults of operations
financial condition or state othe‘forward-looking” information. Those statements include statemergarding the intent, belief or curre
expectations of Telkonet, Inc. (“we,” “us,” “our” othe “Company”) and our management team. Wordshsas “expects,” “anticipates,”
“targets,” “goals,” “projects,” “intends,” “plans,” “believes,” “seeks,” “estimates,” “continues,” “m&,” and variations of these words,
well as similar expressions, are intended to idgrguch forwardeoking statements. In addition, any statemerds riéfer to projections of ol
future financial performance, our anticipated grimtrends in our businesses, and other charactédma of future events or circumstances
forward-looking statements. Any such forwdodking statements are not guarantees of futuréoperance and involve risks and uncertain
and actual results may differ materially from thge®jected in the forwardboking statements. These risks and uncertaintielude but ar
not limited to those risks and uncertainties sethfan Item 1A of this report. In light of the sifjicant risks and uncertainties inherent in
forward-looking statements included in this report, thelusion of such statements should not be regarded apresentation by us or &
other person that our objectives and plans wilkiohieved.

GENERAL
Business

Telkonet, Inc., formed in 1999 and incorporatedarrttie laws of the state of Utah, is made up of swwergistic business divisions, EcoSt
Energy Management Technology and EthoStream Higle&nternet Access (HSIA) Network.

ECOSMART ENERGY MANAGEMENT TECHNOLOGY

Our EcoSmart Suite of products (which include Takdts legacy “SmartEnergydroducts) provides comprehensive savings, manageame
reporting of a building's room-bgsom energy consumption. Telkonet's energy managepreducts are currently installed in over 200
rooms in properties within the hospitality, milgareducational and healthcare markets. The EcoSteeinology platform is rapidly bei
recognized as a leading solutiprevider for reducing energy consumption, carboatdgants, and eliminating the need for new en
generation in these marketplaces — all whilst inajprg occupant comfort and convenience.

Controlling energy consumption can make a signifigenpact on a property ownsrbottom line, as heating, ventilation and air ¢oowling
("HVAC") costs represent a substantial portion daaility’s overall utility bill. Hospitality is a key marké&r Telkonet. According to the EF
EnergySTAR for Hospitality analysis, the medianghaises approximately 70,000 Btu/ft2 from all eryesgurces. Since fewer than 20% of
hotels in North America have an energy managemgsiem, there is considerable opportunity to agbisse lodging facilities that are m
energy intensive than necessary. With approximaté|@00 hotels in the USA alone, the market siziistantial.

Energy is very often wasted by heating and coalowms that are not occupied, these spaces witimittent occupancy constitutes Telkoret’
target markets, and our experience, supporteddspendent research, suggests these rooms are pieatbetween 30% - 70% of the time.

Rooms with intermittent occupancy are most commofdynd in the following market sectors
« Hospitality : hotels, motels, resorts, casinos, etc.

« Educational : residence halls, dormitories, apartments andratampus living options. Also K2 environments with distributed ¢
portable classroom

« Military : residence halls, barracks, apartments and odmpus living options.
« Health care: medical office buildings, assisted and independtieimg facilities.

Continually running HVAC equipment in vacant rooaiso increases the maintenance overhead and shdhnerequipmend’ working life. |
all adds up to unnecessary waste and cost.




EcoSmart Suite of Energy Management Produ:

EcoSmart offers a product suite capable of creaéimetwork of inroom energy management devices that can be coafigier meet tt
requirements of most building environments. Telkooan provide and install any combination of itogietary intelligent thermosta
occupancy sensors, door contacts, lighting and lglad control devices. All products can be wirdiesetworked to enhance energy efficie
and provide remote monitoring capability. Telkon#fers a modular approach that can be scaled froailsleployments to portfolios of lar
properties - the heart of the network is the thestay once installed all other devices can be #éfssly added at any time.

Ecolnsight - a programmable controllable thermostat with o265 configurable settings used to control the &fficy of HVAC -
heating, ventilating, and air conditioning systems.

EcoConnect- serves as coordinator of the devices connectetidécenergy management network, managing approgiyn80-7C
thermostats.

EcoCommander- a network-edge gateway server that providestiesd-data aggregation, reporting and managemetfiedEcoSma
product suite.

EcoView - a remote occupancy sensor that monitors roonts wita, highsensitive sensors designed to detect motion, bedy; an
ambient light level. All sensors are programmedettsure accurate occupancy detection. EcoViews neaydvdwired or communice
wirelessly.

EcoWave- a 2component package that includes a revolutionaryoterinterface wireless thermostat (EcoAir) and pdwecontrol
solution offering distributed management overraom HVAC units. The wireless EcoAir allows the wugeterface to be mounted ir
convenient location with good visibility of the nmato optimize occupancy detection.

EcoSwitch- an EcoSmart energy management product with theaagpee of a traditional light switch. Turning lighiff, even for
short time, saves energy and extends lamp life. Ht@wSwitch stops the flow of electricity to lightspnserving electricity that would he
otherwise been wasted on an empty space.

EcoGuard - has the ability to monitor and stop the flow of mwo one or both outlets, based on occupancyarittarn off lamp:s
televisions, appliances, and any other enemysuming loads that are plugged in, preventingopgrty from consuming power in an err
room. The EcoGuard completely disconnects devica®s the power supply, preventing lights and otlmeroom electronics from needles
consuming energy.

EcoContact - a remote, wireless door/window contact with theligbto provide additional occupancy data and cohtiVAC
operability when doors or windows are open.

Intelligent Energy Managemen

Telkonets EcoSmart energy management technology is a lgadielligent and advanced solution designed taveelat all levels b
controlling a building’s HVAC usage and improvingezgy efficiency one room at a time, all data issgnted on room-bgeom basis, allowin
very granular management of ieem energy use and environmental conditions. ifeaes this by using a combination of wired andeles:
technology components, including occupancy sensord intelligent programmable thermostats connectéth packaged terminal
conditioner (“PTAC") controllers or any other temal equipment HVAC products, to adjust and maintaimoms temperature according
occupancy, eliminating wasteful heating and coolifiginoccupied rooms. All these things can be doom the thermostat or via any web-
connected device, such as smart phones, tabletsyatogh computers.

EcoSmart is the only energy management systemddlaters optimum, individual room energy savinggheut compromising occups
comfort, thanks to a patented technology — RecoVane ™ — that works quite differently from otherrioom energy management systems.

Recovery Time™ Technolog

All EcoSmart systems feature Recovery Time™, telduyo designed to maximize energy efficiency witheacrificing occupant comfo
When a room is occupied, the temperature selecyethd occupant will be maintained by the EcoSmgstesn. However, whenever -
occupancy sensor determines that the room is upxdtuthe system adjusts the room temperature URempvery Time™. Unlike oth
systems, Recovery Time™ technology constantly perfocalculations that evaluate how far each reotemperature can drift from f
occupant’s preferred setting (“set-point”), to hes¥ energy savings while still being able to rettarthe occupant’s set-point within a pre
defined amount of time.




When determining the temperature setting, Recovémye™ technology considers how long it will take return the temperature to
occupant’s setpoint once they return to their rodhe temperature will only drift far enough to eresthe system will return to the occupant’
preferred temperature setting within minutes upwgirtreturn to the room. The specific length of tkeovery time is selected by propt
management at the time of the installation; howeitean be altered at any time by management.

How do others do it’

When the room is occupied the occupant selects-poset. When the occupant leaves, the thermostatrts to an energy-saving getini
which is a fixed number of degrees different thiae eccupant set-point (lower in winter and higmesiimmer). In some products the peini
is a fixed temperature selected by the propertyeswimhe problem is that each room will take a défeé amount of time to return to -
occupant set-point variables such as the outdoor temperature andtra orientation to sun or wind will dramaticallyfexdt the length of tirr
the HVAC unit has to run to recover the room terapume to sepoint. Maintenance condition of the HVAC unit wédlso affect the time
dirty filter or coil offers less heat transfer andll take longer and will cause unit to work hardeDther variables affect time as well, |
whether the drapes are open or closed. The resalzery uneven distribution of temperatures froont to room and ultimately an unsatis
occupant/guest.

EcoSmart Delivers Roo-by-Room Savings

Telkonet's approach is different, since each rooemgironment is different; every room is evaluatedependently in redime to determine i
energy efficient temperature, or setback. RecoV@me™ technology constantly calculates in risade how far the room temperature can
by taking into consideration all the environmeriadracteristics that impact the temperature indoen, including:

« The occupant’s preferred temperature setting;

« The location of the room within the building;

« The window placement — facing the sun or shade;

« If the drapes are open or closed;

« If the climate is dry or humid;

« The varying weather conditions throughout the dengd

« The condition of the HVAC unit, such as age andigfficy.

Through the constant monitoring of the HVAC unitkility to drive the temperature and the reade adjustment of the setback tempera
rooms are never excessively hot or cold when anmaa returns to the room. The room will alwaygust minutes away from an occupant’
desired comfort setting. As a result, Recovery Tifmechnology delivers room-by-room, occupant-bytgeamt savings.

Our EcoSmart platforms maximize energy reductiomdlevat the same time ensuring occupant comfortximiaing energy savings a
extending equipment life expectancyoften by more than 40%. This technology is palidy attractive to customers in the hospite
industry, as well as the education, healthcareliphbusing and government/military markets, whe eontinually seeking ways to reduce c
and meet federal and state mandates without impgadttililding occupant comfort. By reducing energmsumption automatically wher
space is unoccupied utilizing the suite of EcoSneargy management products, our customers aret@bkmalize significant cost savir
without diminishing occupant comfort.

Telkonets EcoSmart technology may also be integrated witityucontrols, property management systems anitblimg automation systems
be used in load shedding initiativesising industry standard communication protocolsetsure widespread adoption and easy tc
interfaces. This feature provides management cammpand utilities enhanced opportunities for a@stings, environmental protections
energy management. Telkoreenergy management systems are lowering HVAC dostsindreds of thousands of rooms worldwide
qualify for most state and federal energy efficieand rebate programs.




Competitive Advantages

We believe our energy management platform, with patented Recovery Time™ technology, delivers esttenbenefits over competi
products, including:

« Maximum energy savings - evaluating each raorahvironmental conditions, including room locatiamndow placemer
humidity, time-of-day, weather conditions, and operating efficientii @AC equipment;

« Longer life and reduced maintenance of HVAC uritetigh reduced runtimes and proactive equipmenitorang;

« Increased occupant control & comfort;

« Simple to use and easy to read thermostat. BadKtigimdly for visually impaired;

« Web-based access with extremely powerful yet sinplese EcoCentral web interface;

« Speed and ease of installation of in-room devicesretwork infrastructure;

« Extensive range of HVAC system compatibility;

« Adaptive learning and system programming;

« Utility-integrated events capabilities;

« Remote HVAC control network;

o Plug load, lighting and HVAC controls;

- Extensive 3rd-party integrations;

- Based on industry standard software and commuaitatiotocols (Linux, ZigBee); and

« Offers rapid return on investment, typical ROlwbtto three years.
Our open, scalable and standards-based architeatinws the EcoSmart platform to integrate searhessth backoffice manageme
systems, property management systems, buildingreaiton systems and utility demand/response prog@snaell as additional thirgarty
network architecture to recognize increased efiicjeand savings. This approach enables the develapaf customized energy manager
deployments while protecting existing investments.
Based on these platform features and capabilitiesye been awarded, and continue to receive, contriacthie hospitality, militar
educational, healthcare and utility industries.aditition, we believe that our relationships withity-sponsored direct install and rebdterdec
programs provide us with a significant advantagerawr competitors in the commercial occupahaged energy management market.
direct go-tomarket strategy, not encumbered by inflexible @istion agreements, offers further advantages irkimg with energy efficienc
providers who support utilities in implementing emeefficiency and demand reduction programs.
Our EcoSmart platform has been developed to magiraiergy efficiency and savings. Our technolodgwad users to decrease heating
cooling, lighting and plugload energy consumptiomd &xtend equipment life without diminishing occapaomfort. By providing Internet-
based remote management over in-room energy eftigieEcoSmart decreases the cost to operate arpesgavide system by improving tl
efficiency and operational effectiveness of onsitgineering resources.
Given the population growth in the United Stated #dre increasing demand for energy, we believetiaddil energyrelated infrastructure w
be needed. We believe the use of Smart Grid tdobies and energy efficiency management platformesaffordable alternatives to buildi

additional power generation through leveragingtégsresources and providing enhanced energy ssvilyhile requiring investments that
not typical for most utilities, we believe the lotgym savings resulting from these investments euitiveigh the costs.




Industry and Market Overviev

According to the U.S. Department of Energy (DOB%4lof all the energy produced in the United Stidesmployed to cool, heat, light,
accomplish other functions within commercial builgé. In an effort to remain competitive and managpenses, governments, builc
owners, building tenants, and companies in geremllooking for ways to become more efficient béititally and environmentally. T
American Council for an Energy Efficient Economgported that the cost of saving one unit of enéhgyugh energy efficiency is orféth
(1/5) the cost required to generate that sameafirdhergy. As a result, we feel that the growtharpmities in the energy management mg
have just begun.

A 2011 report issued by Pike Research, titled, talaviarket for Energy Efficient Buildings to Surga$100 Billion by 2017"stated that tt
market for energy efficiency services and equipnieoh the rise as national governments look tacednergy consumption by improving
efficiency of the building stock. With buildings ing one of the largest sources of energy consumptie opportunity to improve efficiency
significant, ranging from high-efficiency HVAC sgshs to the utilization of energfficient lighting technologies to business modaish a
energy performance contracting as employed by greggvice companies (“ESCOsdjound the world. According to the Pike report, thia
market for energy efficiency in buildings will rda8103.5 billion by 2017, an increase of more tB@#b from the 2011 market value of $€
billion.

Simply put, all industries are prime candidateseoergy management and the industries that are npestor undertaking these initiatives
those that utilize energy “on-demana’intermittently, such as those in the hospitakigucational, military and healthcare industri@®viding
energy, and engaging the equipment to supply ihhdase rooms and spaces only when occupied resudignificant energy savings in addit
to affording longer life and reduced maintenancthéoHVAC systems.

COST OF ENERG)Y Electricity District Heat Fuel Oil Natural Gas

Educational Building: 76% 7% 2% 15%
($8,111 million)

Healthcare Building 80% N/A 1% 19%
($4,882 million)

Office Buildings 87% 4% 1% 8%
($17,005 million)

Lodging Buildings 79% N/A 3% 18%
(%$5,228 million)
Source: Energy Information Administration, 2!
Commercial Buildings Energy Consumption Sui

Education Industry

Telkonets most rapidly emerging market is the educationdlstry as we continue to expand our presenceisnntiarketplace through
concerted and focused approach, which involvedesfia relationships with enterprise ESCOs througttbe USA. Telkonet partners w
ESCOs to include our EcoSmart energy managemetfibptafor deployment within resident halls on unisiey campuses. The ESCOs bui
our technology with other facility improvement meees designed to reduce operating costs acrosntire campus, some of these initiat
provide attractive returns on customer investmesush as EcoSmart for dormitories and lighting apgs, while others such as roofs
windows have poor paybacks but are needed infiestel improvements. ESCOs bundle these facilityrawpments into a project that |
acceptable returns and met state mandated guideliffee ESCOs then structure self-funding finantiahsactions called Performanc
Contracts”in which the savings are greater than the repaymests. The ESCOs will typically guarantee the ritial and operation
performance in this type of engagement. This apgfroamoves many of the capital funding issuesgtaatd in the way of implementing ene
efficient technologies and shifts the technologg parformance risk from the institution to the ESCO

In July 2008, we entered into an agreement with Né&wk University under which New York University fiamplemented Telkonest’
networked energy management platform to centralipage energy consumption in its dormitories. Tredkavorked with the University to L
its existing building infrastructure to remotely ma@e and track energy consumption. Approximatedp@ rooms across 11 dormitories
been completed and have yielded time and energy consumption reductions, operatisaaings from reduced field labor expenses
extension of equipment lives. Since this time, veee grown our Educational deployments to inclugehscustomers as the University
California (UC-Davis), Northern Oklahoma Colleged¥), the Massachusetts Institute of Technology (Miiid Columbia University.




The opportunities in this market are certainly lited to higher education institutions. A repbst EnergySTAR, a joint program of the L
Environmental Protection Agency and the U.S. Departt of Energy, showed that our nation’s 17,450Xschools spend more than $6 bil
on energy and that as much as 30% of a district& energy is used inefficiently or unnecessarily.

We believe that our EcoSmart platform is an impdrtaol for participants in the educational indysteeking to control studentlated energ
costs. We have focused our sales efforts on mesdie¢he educational industry who are seeking fmaed their energy efficiency initiatives
well as the ESCOs who target the educational mpldet and have thus far had some success withast ¢me school district installi
EcoSmart in each classroom throughout the district.

Hospitality Industry

According to EnergySTAR, the cost of energy for Aic&'s 47,000 hotels averages $2,196 per available each year. As the cost of enc
continues to increase, energy efficiency projeets provide an immediate and significant reductioremergy expenses. A 10% reductio
energy costs is equivalent to increasing revenueapailable room (RevPAR) by $0.60 for limited seevhotels and by more than $2.00
full-service hotels. With EcoSmart, Telkonet casoateduce equipment runtime in unoccupied room2®$#5% while maintaining gue
comfort, making the solution uniquely suited foesgy management projects in the hospitality market.

Any successful hotelier must focus on achievingdtiical balance between guest comfort and opsgatiargins-and maintaining this balan
in the longterm. Telkonet's patented Recovery Time™ technoklafpws EcoSmart to maximize energy savings wittmrhpromising gue
comfort. In fact, hoteliers with EcoSmart can guéea an indoor environment unique for each propartyrand, where each room returns tc
guest sepoint within six minutes, regardless of room assignt. This dynamic technology sets Telkonet apamnffixed setback ener
management systems, where the setback temperatuaefiked temperature or a fixed deviation. Botkedi setback approaches mak
extremely difficult to predict how long it will takthe room to return to the set-point after thesgueenters the room, resulting in potenti
lower energy savings and uncomfortable room tentpers.

The green button option on Telkorwethtelligent thermostat allows a more aggressier@y savings profile to be loaded when presseth¢
occupant and is designed to engage occupants vehcoammitted to green and sustainability. Some hotlvard pressing the button thro
the affinity program with special guest loyalty pisi.

Military Industry

With the Department of Defense (“DODiging the single largest energy consumer in théedrbtates, accounting for about 90 percent ¢
federal government’'s energy use and using over Bllommegawatt hours of electricity per year, we view this rket as strategical
significant to Telkonet's interests.

Our energy management platform is already sucdbssficorporated into the energy initiatives in seal military housing sites, milita
academies and barracks. In October 2009, ExecQtider 13514, "Federal Leadership in Environmeriiakrgy and Economic Performan
was signed and set into action numerous energyireggents in areas such as Sustainable Buildings Gmdmunities, Greenhouse (
Management and Pollution Prevention and Waste Rietiyamong others. The American Recovery and Wsitment Act (“ARRA”) has
jump-started energy management throughout US governamehmnilitary facilities by providing $4.26 billiom funding for the Department
Defense Facilities Sustainment, Restoration, andeévuization Program. Telkonet has benefited amdimoes to make use of ARRA fund
and other government contracts to provide EcoSfoarise on military bases and other facilities pive both the DOD and the governmer
a whole achieve their long-term energy efficienoglg.

Healthcare Industry

Healthcare is an additional emerging market forgnenanagement as currently, healthcare organizaiio the United States spend over !
billion on energy each year and that number coento rise to meet patientaeeds. Although hospitals have many specific gy
mandates, we have been working closely with opesaaod developers of healthcare support facililiks, medical office buildings, assis!
living and other similar facilities, to integrateroEcoSmart energy management initiatives intacigfificy opportunities supported by state
federal energy programs. These types of faciliiffsr a commercial environment similar to the htajty or educational housing markets,
the increasing growth of the elderly and assistadd markets presents attractive potential forrgpeefficiency. This market is expectec
grow rapidly over the next several years due teritsrgy savings capabilities. For example, hospitakgy managers can use energy effici
strategies to offset high costs caused by growlng [pads and rising energy prices. A typical 200;8quare-foot, 5@ed hospital in the U.
annually spends $680,000—or roughly $13,611 perhmdelectricity and natural gas. By increasing epefficiency, hospitals can impra
the bottom line and free up funds to invest in neehnologies and improve patient care. Every $4.60nprofit healthcare organization sa
on energy is equivalent to generating $20.00 in rexgnues for hospitals and $10.00 for medicatefi




Utility Industry

We believe that the utility industry is one of flastest developing market segments in the UnitateSt With more than $4.5 billion release
the industry through the ARRA for Smart Grid, thiity industry has become a growing percentagewfrevenue, both through direct sale
utilities and partnerships with energy service cames executing state and local energy efficienmgmams. Strategic relationships v
regional ESCOs are key to the continued expandi@mergy efficiency initiatives. In Pike’2011 research report, it was found that the E
market will represent the largest segment of trerggnefficient buildings industry in the coming ygawith revenues more than doubling fi
$30.1 billion in 2011 to $66.0 billion worldwide (3017, a compound annual growth rate of 14%.

We continue to strengthen our focus on our targetatket segments in order to expand market shateake advantage of existing incenti
for energy management. We expect continued exparini the space, and specifically in commercialnseigts due to increasing state
federal programs promoting energy efficiency. @sidential initiatives are also key to the futes@ansion of Telkonet’ EcoSmart prograr
within the developing Smart Grid environment.

Public Housing

Another emerging market for Telkongttnergy management is public housing, which aspgsties owned and managed by the governi
The tenants occupying these properties must mestifgp eligibility requirements, and their utilithills are typically the governmest’
responsibility. Many of the ESCO clients that Telkb supports today have dedicated teams pursuipgriymities with the owners a
operators of governmestibsidized housing. Our solutions are tailor matetfese applications to conserve energy, enabieteemonitorin
control and improve occupant comfort.

Competition

We currently compete primarily within commercialdamdustrial markets, including the hospitality,uedtion, healthcare, public housi
government, utility and military sectors. Withiaah target market, we offer savings through owelligent energy management platform.
products offer significant competitive and completagy benefits when compared with alternative a@fifgs including Building Automatic
Systems (“BAS”) or Building Management Systems (“BN| static temperature occupanicgsed systems, scheduling/programm
thermostats and high-efficiency HVAC systems.

We participate in a relatively small competitiveldi within the hospitality industry, with the maityrof the energy management sales har
by fewer than seven manufacturers. The key conopgtin the market segment are Onity, Inc., Inndomernational Inc. and Schnei
Electric, with each offering comparable productetw standalone and networked energy managemefarpia. Telkones key differentiatol
in the hospitality segment include:

. Recovery Time™ technology;

. Mesh-networked platform;

. Integration with property and building managat systems (PMS & BMS);

. Utility demand-based program integration; and

. Broad HVAC compatibility.
The educational space is a relatively new markebéoupancy-based controls. We'introduced our EcoSmart platform for use witstimden
dormitories, which traditionally had few, if anyprtrols. More recently we have also been requestedstall our products into classrool
which traditionally have been an environment forilding automated systems or building managementesys Since the dormitc
environment is very similar to the hospitality metrtkwe believe we offer similarly scaled energyiisgs. Since the market is still in its infan

very few comparable offerings have entered the etablst competitors within the hospitality segmenat laeginning to respond. Our EcoSr
platform provides a significant advantage withia #ducational industry through:




. Reduced cost as compared to BAS/BMS systems;

. Ease of installation relative to traditiomated systems;

. Range of product compatibility;

. Centralized platform management with roonrdiym performance reporting; and

. Data that is widely and easily available torpote student engagement.
The healthcare and government/military marketsvarg similar in scope when relating to energy mamagnt systems. A key differentiato
these environments is the specific implementatia is being considered. Each market utilizes BBASS for wide scale energy managen
initiatives. When specifically addressing housamyironments including elderly care and assistaddi environments and military dormitor
or barracks, Telkonet’EcoSmart platform is able to provide increaseztggnsavings and efficiency. Competitors operaimthe BAS/BM¢
space include Honeywell, Schneider, Johnson Canti®iemens, Trane and others, many of whom Telkpaehers with to provide
comprehensive and integrated energy managemetitosota effectively address energy efficiency oppnoities in all types of facilities.

ETHOSTREAM HIGH SPEED INTERNET ACCESS (HSIA) NETWOR K

EthoStream is one of the largest public High-Speégtnet Access (“HSIAproviders in the world, providing services to mtran 5.2 millior
users monthly across a network of greater than02|86ations. With a wide range of product and servbfferings and one of the m
comprehensive management platforms available fdAH®tworks, EthoStream offers solutions for anplpuaccess location.
EthoStream provides cutting-edge technology, preactystem monitoring and 24/7/365 in-house teddngupport-and will engineer
seamless browsing experience to produce qualityarktaccess for users. EthoStream has the ahilipotver mobile computing in any marl
and can provide a complete family of wired, wirsleand custondesigned hybrid solutions to outfit diverse propéyipes. From hospitali
properties to university campuses, coffee shopsuaicipal buildings, the highpeed Internet access solutions EthoStream hasogedear:
versatile enough to deploy in any venue. EthoStreffiers customized gateway servers to provide gwigtthat are infinitely scalable
easily upgradable, giving all customers the beméfititure-proof connectivity.

Our EthoStream Gateway Server line provides ingitlstrding HSIA technology to the hospitality and pabhternet access industry, w
advanced features based on in-house product das@ydevelopment, including the following:

« Dual ISP bandwidth aggregation for faster ovenadiet;

« ISP redundancy to eliminate network downtime;

« Enhanced quality of service;

« Real-time meeting room scheduling;

« Comprehensive service analytics;

- Standards-based monitoring and control; and

« Major franchise certified.

We maintain a U.S.-based customer support cemerating 24 hours a day, seven days a week, antbgrapdedicated, ifoust
support team using integrated, web-based managetmelst enabling proactive industlgading support. We believe our customer se
offerings, along with established relationshipotlyh our vendor agreements with some of the lafdgespitality franchises and managen

groups, distinguish us from our competitors intibspitality HSIA industry. Current customers inaud

® Benchmark Hospitalit'
® Choice Hotels Internation:




Crescent Hotels & Resor
Destination Hotels & Resor
Intercontinental Hotels Grot
Kohler Hospitality

Marcus Hotels & Resorl
Marriott Internationa

Red Lion Hotels

Shaner Hospitalit

Summit Hotel Propertie
TMI Communications
Worldmark by Wyndhan
Wyndham Hotels & Resor

EthoStream Advantages

The Total Solution

EthoStream offers a complete package of servicggined for quality wired and wireless higipeed Internet access. Dedicated emplc
conduct site surveys, install equipment, and pm®vskrvice after installation with @ite and remote support. EthoStream emplc
knowledgeable, well-trained staff of support teckams, so users can rely on arhimdse team to provide rapid, friendly assistanceufy issue
Properties Have Control over Their HSI,

EthoStream has a unique product at the core ofyelr@ernet solution: the Remote Management CongtiRMC”). This webbase:
management platform interacts in réate with a property's EthoStream server and irisgr directly with the support center in Milwaul
The RMC allows managers to make instant changtsetentire high-speed Internet system and accéssnation to generate usage reports.
Pro-active 24/7 In-House Support Team

Thanks to the unique capabilities of the RMC, Ethed@n support representatives have an active pressreach location and can easily a
users with any issues that may arise. Rather thakimg from a scripbased support program, the support center ant@spaser needs &
quickly resolves issues.

Custom-Designed Internet Solutions

By developing products and services within the Canypinstead of outsourcing, EthoStream ensuresdinstomers receive only tdjes
equipment. As engineers continue to improve prodapabilities, technicians will remotely updateduot software on a monthly basis.

Competition
Telkonets EthoStream Hospitality Network competes with alevivariety of companies in the hospitality industanging from med|
companies to traditional HSIA solution providesslthough this industry has many service providexs;ording to publicly available data, o
a few HSIA service providers have significant casto bases. Those competitors include Guest-telgéret, iBahn and AT&T.
Market Outlook

We believe that growth of the EthoStream Hospitalietwork will be derived from several key areas

« New customer growth within the f-service hospitality market and through additionagéf@rred vendor agreements v
franchisors

« Competitive customer acquisition through a supgsioduct and service offering;
» Upgrading of EthoStream’s existing 2,300+ custonaess to aging equipment and standards; and

« Ongoing sales to current customers through integraadf additional incoom technologies such as lighting, telephony, @
centers and energy management prodi




SERIES 5 SMART GRID

Telkonets Series 5 Smart Grid networking technology all@mesmercial, industrial and consumer users to caniméelligent devices to
communications network using the existing low vodtaelectrical grid. Series 5 technology uses power line communicationsPLC
technology to transform existing electrical infrasture into a communications backbone. Operating08 Mbps, the PLC platform offer:
secure alternative in grid communications, tramefog a traditional electrical distribution systemid a “smart grid’that delivers electricity in
manner that can save energy, reduce cost and sscrebability.

On March 4, 2011, the Company sold its Series 5gpdime communications product line and relatedrmss assets to Dynamic Ratings,
(“Dynamic Ratings”). The sales price was $1,000,000 in cash. In coimmeetith the sale, Dynamic Ratings lent $700,00@h&® Company i
the form of a 6% promissory note dated March 4,1220Concurrently with the sale, the Company entémémla Distributorship Agreement ¢
a Consulting Agreement with Dynamic Ratings. Untler Distributorship Agreement, the Company wasgiheded as a distributor of 1
Series 5 product to nautility markets and will receive preferred pricifigr purchases of Series 5 product. Under the donguAgreemen
the Company agreed to provide Dynamic Ratings witgoing transition assistance and consulting sesvior the Series 5 product. -
Distributorship Agreement and the Consulting Agreatnhave initial terms that expire on March 31, 20dnd March 31, 201
respectively. Proceeds payable to the CompanyruhdeDistributorship Agreement and the Consuléggeement for a stated period of ti
will be applied against the outstanding accruedregt and principal balance of the Promissory Note.

Inventory

While we are dependent, in certain situations, olimited number of vendors to provide certain inteeyp and components, we no
experienced significant problems or issues purcigaany essential materials, parts or components.oWtain the majority of our inventc
from ATR Manufacturing, a Chinese company, whicloviies substantially all the manufacturing requieais for Telkones energ
management platform. Telkonet has identified aeguin to work with a secondary supplier for its ggemanagement platform for supp
redundancy and disaster recovery.

Customers

We are neither limited to, nor reliant upon, a Engr narrowly segmented customer base to deriveeMenues. Our current primary focu
in the hospitality, commercial, education, utilibhgalthcare and government/military markets anagedjng into the consumer market as pa
our long term strategic growth.

For the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2014ingte customer represented 10% or more of oumtee® Recurring revenue distribt
across a network of approximately 2,300 customgpscximated $4,200,000 for the year ended Dece@be?012.

Intellectual Property

We acquired certain intellectual property by acijois, including, but not limited to, Patent No:395,042, titled Apparatus and Method 1
automatic climate control,” and Patent No. D5699,2fitled “Thermostat.”Patent No. 5,395,042 was issued by the United SR#gent ar
Trademark Office (USPTO) in March 1995. This intien calculates and records the amount of time egddr the thermostat to return
room temperature to the occupant’s set point onperson reenters the room. Patent No. D569,279 issued by®8RTO in May 2008 wi
granted on the ornamental design of a thermostatele

In addition, we currently have multiple patent aggtions under examination, and intend to file &iddal patent applications that we deer
be economically beneficial.

There can be no assurance that any of our currefittare patent applications will be granted, érgianted, that such patents will prov
necessary protection for our technology or our pobafferings, or be of commercial benefit to us.

Government Regulation
We are subject to regulation in the United Statggthe Federal Communications Commission, or FCCCFules permit the operation

unlicensed digital devices that radiate radio fergpy emissions if the manufacturer complies withiade equipment authorization procedu
technical requirements, marketing restrictions pratluct labeling requirements.
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Future products designed by us will require tesfomrgcompliance with FCC and CE compliance. Mooyf in the future, the FCC or E
changes its technical requirements, further testimdfor modifications may be necessary in ordactieve compliance.

Research & Developmer

During the years ended December 31, 2012 and 204 $pent $984,853 and $775,329, respectively, sgareh and development activities
2012 and 2011, research and development largeliséaton the development of Telkonet's EcoSmarntdoy; in particular, expanding 1
product line to include the EcoGuard and EcoSwéshwell as enhancing existing components to sewigler range of markets and custom
Several development efforts centered around intiegraof third party devices and software, in adufitito continued enhancement of
EcoCentral web management system. The engineeghigndb the EcoSmart products requires continuougldpment to allow Telkonet
meet the latest standards for wireless and cortiolmologies.

The primary focus of development within the Ethe&in division are related to adjustments requireMbyriott-branded properties, includi
a special portal and system design architectureedsas enhanced reporting. These efforts resuiteal necessary certification and will
beneficial for all current and new full-service taraers moving forward.
Other Information
Employees
As of March 22, 2013, we had 99 ftitne employees. During 2012, significant positidiied included additional sales account execigjw
human resource generalist and multiple engineegegurces. We continue to hire additional persbttnmeet future operating requireme
We anticipate that we may need to hire additiotefif $n the areas of customer support, field sersjoengineering, sales and marketing,
administration.
Environmental Matters
We do not anticipate any material effect on ouriteh@xpenditures, earnings or competitive positthre to compliance with governm
regulations involving environmental matters.
ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS.
Our results of operations, financial condition axadh flows can be adversely affected by variodsrishese risks include, but are not lim
to, the principal factors listed below and the ottmatters set forth in this annual report on Fof¥K1 You should carefully consider all of tht
risks.

Risks Relating to the Ownership of Our Common Stock

The market price of our common stock has been anayngontinue to be volatile.

The trading price of our common stock has beenmay continue to be highly volatile and could bejsabto wide fluctuations in response
various factors. Some of the factors that may edlus market price of our common stock to fluctuatdude:

. fluctuations in our quarterly financial and opengtresults or the quarterly financial results aihpanies perceived to be
similar to us;

. changes in estimates of our financial results comamendations by securities analysts;

. potential deterioration of investor confidence g from material weaknesses in our internal condver financial
reporting;

. our ability to settle sales tax obligations inradily, cost-effective manner;
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. our ability to raise and generate working capitainteet our obligations in the ordinary course dfibess;

. changes in general economic, industry and markeditons;

. failure of any of our products to achieve or mamtaarket acceptance;

. changes in market valuations of similar companies;

. failure of our products to operate as advertised,;

. success of competitive products;

. changes in our capital structure, such as futwgaisces of securities or the incurrence of additidabt;
. announcements by us or our competitors of sigmifipaoducts, contracts, acquisitions or stratetjiareces;
. regulatory developments in the United States, fpreountries or both;

. litigation involving our Company, our general inthysor both;

. additions or departures of key personnel; and

. investors’ general perception of us.

In addition, if the market for technology stockstlee stock market in general experiences a logsvektor confidence, the trading price of
common stock could decline for reasons unrelateztdusiness, financial condition or results oéigions. If any of the foregoing occur:
could cause our stock price to fall and may expasdo class action lawsuits that, even if unsudakssould be costly to defend ant
distraction to management.

Anti-takeover provisions in our charter documents andalitlaw could discourage delay or prevent a chandeontrol of our Company an
may affect the trading price of our common stock.

We are a Utah corporation and the d@akieover provisions of the Utah Control Shares Agitian Act may discourage, delay or preve
change of control by limiting the voting rights @dntrol shares acquired in a control share acquisitin addition, our Amended and Resti
Articles of Incorporation and bylaws may discouradelay or prevent a change in our management miraloover us that shareholders r
consider favorable. Among other things, our Amehded Restated Articles of Incorporation and bytaws

. authorize the issuance of “blank chegiteferred stock that could be issued by our boérdirectors to thwart a takeoy
attempt;
. provide that vacancies on our board of directorsluding newly created directorships, may be filledy by a majority vot

of directors then in office, except a vacancy odogrby reason of the removal of a director withoatse shall be filled |
vote of the shareholders; a

. limit who may call special meetings of shareholders

These provisions could have the effect of delayoingpreventing a change of control, whether or nas idesired by, or beneficial to, «
shareholders.

We do not currently intend to pay dividends on acommon stock and, consequently, the ability to amré a return on an investment in o
common stock will depend on appreciation in the ggiof our common stock.

We do not expect to pay cash dividends on our comsback. Any future dividend payments are withie ibsolute discretion of our boarc
directors and will depend on, among other things, results of operations, working capital requiratse capital expenditure requireme
financial condition, contractual restrictions, lness opportunities, anticipated cash needs, pomasif applicable law and other factors tha
board of directors may deem relevant. We may roegate sufficient cash from operations in therfuto pay dividends on our common stc
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Our common stock is thinly traded and there may & an active, liquid trading market for our commaatock.

Our common stock is currently quoted on the Over@ounter Bulletin Board, or OTCBB. However, theseo guarantee that our comn
stock will be actively traded on the OTCBB, or tha volume of trading will be sufficient to alldwr timely trades. Investors may not be i
to sell their shares quickly or at the latest magkece if trading in our stock is not active ortidding volume is limited. In addition, if tradj
volume in our common stock is limited, trades détigely small numbers of shares may have a diggtamate effect on the market price
our common stock.

In addition, some aspects of the OTCBB may deteestors from purchasing our common stock, which sigopress trading in our comn
stock. For example, the OTCBB lacks the stri¢irigsstandards of a national stock exchange reggrctrporate governance, a minimum s
price, and various matters which have to be apurdyeshareholders. The only requirement for inolusn the OTCBB is that the issuer
current in its SEC reporting requirements, and thatissuer obligates itself to file periodic rejgaand otherwise comply with those provisi
of the 1934 Act applicable to it. Shareholder$OGfCBB companies frequently have difficulty in gettibuy/sell orders filled promptly, and
at expected prices. OTCBB companies generally Hawer trading volume, which contributes to thegiiidity of investing in suc
companies. Trading activity on the OTCBB is nohduocted as efficiently as trades of national stex&hangdisted securities. There are
automated systems for negotiating trades on theBBI Go trades must be conducted by telephone bglaebdealer. In times of heavy mar
volume, the limitations of this process may inceede time it takes to make trades and the pricghef stock may fluctuate in t
interim. These factors may make it difficult fovestors to buy additional shares or to sell thereshthat they hold.

Our common stock is subject to “Penny Stock” restions.

As long as the price of our common stock remainkesd than $5 per share, we will be subject tealled penny stock rules which co
decrease our stock’s market liquidity. The SEC ddagpted regulations which define a “penny stdckinclude any equity security that he
market price of less than $5 per share or an eseemmiice of less than $5 per share, subject taioegkceptions. For any transaction involvi
penny stock, unless exempt, the rules require ¢fieadty to and execution by the retail customea @ifritten declaration of suitability relating
the penny stock, which must include disclosureh&f tommissions payable to both the broker/dealdrthe registered representative
current quotations for the securities. Finallye tiroker/dealer must send monthly statements disgjaecent price information for the pel
stocks held in the account and information on iinééd market in penny stocks. Those requiremeatsdd adversely affect the market liquic
of our common stock. There can be no assurandethlibaprice of our common stock will rise above |$& share so as to avoid th
regulations.

Further issuances of equity securities may be dikat to current stockholders.

It is possible that we will be required to seekitiddal capital in the future. This capital fundimguld involve one or more types of eq
securities, including convertible debt, common onwertible preferred stock and warrants to acqamamon or preferred stock. Such eq
securities could be issued at or below the thivailing market price for our common stock. Asguance of additional shares of our com
stock will be dilutive to existing stockholders ammlild adversely affect the market price of our own stock.

The exercise of conversion rights, options and wamts outstanding and available for issuance may arsely affect the market price of o
common stock.

As of December 31, 2012, we had outstanding emplaysions to purchase a total of 1,280,642 share®mmon stock at exercise pri
ranging from $0.14 to $5.60 per share, with a weidhaverage exercise price of $0.62. As of Decemdfier2012, we did not have ¢
outstanding nommployee options. As of December 31, 2012, we hadlamts outstanding to purchase a total of 10,880shares of comm:
stock at exercise prices ranging from $0.13 to @36r share, with a weighted average exercise pfick0.45. The exercise of outstanc
options and warrants and the sale in the publiketasf the shares purchased upon such exercisdevitlilutive to existing stockholders ¢
could adversely affect the market price of our camratock.
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Risks Related to Our Business
The industry within which we operate is intenselgropetitive and rapidly evolving.

We operate in a highly competitive, quickly charggamvironment, and our future success will depemawr ability to develop and introdt
new products and product enhancements that achieael market acceptance in the markets within wihiehcompete. We will also neec
respond effectively to new product announcementsusycompetitors by quickly introducing competitipeoducts.

Delays in product development and introduction dagbkult in:
. loss of or delay in revenue and loss of marketeshar
. negative publicity and damage to our reputationthedeputation of our product offerings; and
. decline in the average selling price of our product

We have identified material weaknesses in our imtak controls as of December 31, 2012 that, if nobperly remediated, could result
material misstatements in our financial statements.

Based on an evaluation of our disclosure of intlecoatrols and procedures as of December 31, 20d2management has concluded that,
such date, there were material weaknesses in temal control over financial reporting relating ttte need for a stronger internal cor
environment. A material weakness is a controldieficy, or a combination of control deficienciasjnternal control over financial reportil
such that there is a more than a remote likelintbatla material misstatement of annual or intermarfcial statements would not be preve
or detected. Until these material weaknesses irinternal control over financial reporting are exfiated, there is reasonable possibility
material misstatements of our annual or interimsotidated financial statements could occur andbeoprevented or detected by our inte
controls in a timely manner.

Government regulation of our products could impaur ability to sell such products in certain markset

The rules of the FCC, permit the operation of waniged digital devices that radiate radio frequamissions if the manufacturer complies \
certain equipment authorization procedures, teahniequirements, marketing restrictions and prodatieling requirements. Differil
technical requirements apply to “Class A” devicgemnded for use in commercial settings, and “CBisdevices intended for residential us
which more stringent standards apply. An indepahdeCCcertified testing lab has verified that our iWirgsgm product suite complies w
the FCC technical requirements for Class A and Casligital devices. No further testing of thessides is required, and the devices ma
manufactured and marketed for commercial and rasaleuse. Additional devices designed by us fammercial and residential use will
subject to the FCC rules for unlicensed digitalides. Moreover, if in the future, the FCC changedechnical requirements for unlicen
digital devices, further testing and/or modificasoof devices may be necessary. Failure to comfityany FCC technical requirements cc
impair our ability to sell our products in certamarkets and could have a negative impact on ouness and results of operations.

Products sold by our competitors could become mpopular than our products or render our products stiete.

The market for our products and services is higtdynpetitive. Some of our competitors have longeerafing histories, greater na
recognition and substantially greater financiathtgcal, sales, marketing and other resources. eThempetitors may, among other thir
undertake more extensive marketing campaigns, achmpe aggressive pricing policies, obtain more falte pricing from suppliers a
manufacturers and exert more influence on the sdleanel than we can. As a result, we may not Ibe tabcompete successfully with th
competitors, and these competitors may developarkeh technologies and products that are more widetepted than those being develc
by us or that would render our products obsoleteamrcompetitive. We anticipate that competitord also intensify their efforts to penetr
our target markets. These competitors may have ambranced technology, more extensive distributimenoels, stronger brand names, bi
promotional budgets and larger customer basesweado. These companies could devote more capialirees to develop, manufacture
market competing products than we could. If anthebe companies are successful in competing agansur sales could decline, our mar
could be negatively impacted, and we could loseketashare, any of which could seriously harm ousitess, results of operations,

prospects.

We may not be able to obtain patents, which couétvd a material adverse effect on our business.
We currently have several patents pending. Weiatead to file additional patent applications tha deem to be economically beneficial

we are not successful in obtaining patents, we hlle limited protection against those who mightycour technology. As a result, the fail
to obtain patents could negatively impact our besssn results of operations, and prospects.
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Infringement by third parties on our proprietary thnology and development of substantially equivalgoprietary technology by ol
competitors could negatively impact our business.

Our success depends partly on our ability to mainpatent and trade secret protection, to obtaiaréupatents and licenses and to opi
without infringing on the proprietary rights of tHiparties. There can be no assurance that theuresawe have taken to protect our intelles
property rights, including intellectual propertghis of third parties integrated into our TelkoiWire System product suite and our EcoSi
suite of products will prevent misappropriationcincumvention. In addition, there can be no assmeghat any patent application, when fi
will result in an issued patent, or that our exigtpatents, or any patents that may be issuedeirfuture, will provide us with significa
protection against competitors. Moreover, them loa no assurance that any patents issued taemskd by, us will not be infringed upor
circumvented by others. Infringement by third j@&ton our proprietary technology could negativieipact our business. Moreover, litigat
to establish the validity of patents, to assertifigiement claims against others, and to defendnagaatent infringement claims can
expensive and timeensuming, even if the outcome is in our favor. &l rely to a lesser extent on unpatented prigpyigechnology, and |
assurance can be given that others will not indégetty develop substantially equivalent proprietarfiprmation, techniques or processe
that we can meaningfully protect our rights to suctpatented proprietary technology. If our contpesi develop substantially equival
technology and we are unable to enforce any il property rights with respect to such techgglm a costeffective manner or at all, ¢
business and operations would suffer significantrha

We may incur substantial damages due to litigation.

We cannot be certain that our products do not atidhet infringe issued patents or other intellesdtproperty rights of others. We are curre
a defendant in an action in which it is alleged tla have infringed the intellectual property rigltf another party. If it were determined
our products infringe the intellectual propertyhtig of another, we could be required to pay sultisiadtamages or be enjoined from licensin
using the infringing products or technology. Addlitally, if it were determined that our productsrimfe the intellectual property rights
others, we would need to obtain licenses from tlpesties or substantially mnagineer our products in order to avoid infringetn&e migh
not be able to obtain the necessary licenses aptadale terms or at all, or to emgineer our products successfully. Any of thedoreg coul
cause us to incur significant costs and preveiftams selling our products.

We depend on a small team of senior management nay have difficulty attracting and retaining adddnal personnel.

Our future success will depend in large part up@ndontinued services and performance of senioagement and other key personnel. |
lose the services of any member of our senior memagt team, our overall operations could be maligaad adversely affected. In additi
our future success will depend on our ability teritify, attract, hire, train, retain and motivather highly skilled technical, manager
marketing, purchasing and customer service persammen they are needed. Competition for theseviddals is intense. We cannot en:
that we will be able to successfully attract, imétg or retain sufficiently qualified personnel whihe need arises. Any failure to attract
retain the necessary technical, managerial, madketiurchasing and customer service personnel dwud a negative effect on our finan
condition and results of operations.

Any acquisitions we make could result in difficués in successfully managing our business and consadly harm our financial condition.
We may seek to expand by acquiring complementasynbases in our current or ancillary markets. \Afenot accurately predict the timi
size and success of our acquisition efforts andadsmciated capital commitments that might be redquiWe expect to face competition
acquisition candidates, which may limit the numblacquisition opportunities available to us and/fead to higher acquisition prices. TF
can be no assurance that we will be able to idgngéi€quire or profitably manage additional busiesser successfully integrate acqu
businesses, if any, without substantial costs,ydeta other operational or financial difficultids. addition, acquisitions involve a numbel
other risks, including:

. failure of the acquired businesses to achieve ggpeesults;

. diversion of management’s attention and resouesquisitions;

« failure to retain key customers or personnel ofabguired businesses;

. disappointing quality or functionality of acquireduipment and people; and

. risks associated with unanticipated events, liaddior contingencies.
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Client dissatisfaction or performance problems a&irgle acquired business could negatively affest reputation. The inability to acqu
businesses on reasonable terms or successfulgyraméeand manage acquired companies, or the oacerd performance problems at acqu
companies, could result in dilution, unfavorable@amting treatment or orténe charges and difficulties in successfully manggur busines

Our inability to obtain capital, use internally gearated cash or debt, or use shares of our commatlstto finance our operations or futu
acquisitions could impair the growth and expansia our business.

Reliance on internally generated cash or debtrtanite our operations or complete acquisitions ceulzstantially limit our operational a
financial flexibility. The extent to which we wille able or willing to use shares of our commonkstocconsummate acquisitions will dep
on the market value of our common stock which walty, and our liquidity. Using shares of our comnstock for this purpose also may re
in significant dilution to our then existing stoacktlers. To the extent that we are unable to useconmmon stock to make future acquisitic
our ability to grow through acquisitions may beitid by the extent to which we are able to raisgitahthrough debt or additional eqt
financings. No assurance can be given that webgilable to obtain the necessary capital to finamgeacquisitions or our other cash neec
we are unable to obtain additional capital on atadgp terms, we may be required to reduce the sobpay expansion or redirect resoui
committed to internal purposes. In addition to iggg funding for acquisitions, we may need addidbfunds to implement our internal gro
and operating strategies or to finance other aspafcbur operations. Our failure to: (i) obtain #ibehal capital on acceptable terms; (ii)
internally generated cash or debt to complete ai@ttpns because it significantly limits our opeoatal or financial flexibility; or (iii) use shar
of our common stock to make future acquisitionsy mmader our ability to actively pursue any acqtiisis.

Potential fluctuations in operating results couldave a negative effect on the price of our commoanckt

Our operating results may fluctuate significantiythie future as a result of a variety of factorestof which are outside our control, including:

. the level of use of the Internet;

. the demand for high-tech goods;

. the amount and timing of capital expenditures ah@rcosts relating to the expansion of our openati
. price competition or pricing changes in the indystr

. technical difficulties or system downtime;

. changes in governmental policies;

. economic conditions specific to the internet anchicwnications industry; and

. general economic conditions.

Our financial results may also be significantly asfed by certain accounting treatment of acquisstidinancing transactions or other mat
Such accounting treatment could have a materiah@hpn our results of operations and have a negatipact on the price of our comn
stock.

We rely on a limited number of third party suppligrlf these companies fail to perform or experiendelays, shortages, or increased dem
for their products or services, we may face shoeagincreased costs, and may be required to suspie@mloyment of our products ai
services

We depend on a limited number of third party swgrglito provide the components and the equipmeniregtito deliver our solutions. If the
providers fail to perform their obligations undarr agreements with them or we are unable to reheset agreements, we may be force
suspend the sale and deployment of our productssandces and enrollment of new customers, whichldvbave an adverse effect on
business, prospects, financial condition and opeyaesults.
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Our management and operational systems might bedieguate to handle our potential growth.

We may experience growth that could place a sicpgaifi strain upon our management and operationtdragsand resources. Failure to mal
our growth effectively could have a material adeeeffect upon our business, results of operatigms fanancial condition. Our ability
compete effectively and to manage future growth sejuire us to continue to improve our operatiogyatems, organization and financial
management controls, reporting systems and proesdi/e may fail to make these improvements effelsti Additionally, our efforts 1
make these improvements may divert the focus ofpeusonnel. We must integrate our key executiués & cohesive management teal
expand our business. If new hires perform poanyif we are unsuccessful in hiring, training antegrating these new employees, or if we
not successful in retaining our existing employees,business may be harmed. To manage the gnwevihill need to increase our operatic
and financial systems, procedures and controls. dDuent and planned personnel, systems, procedure controls may not be adequal
support our future operations. We may not be @bleffectively manage such growth, and failure ¢osd could have a material adverse e
on our business, financial condition and resultsperations.

We may be affected if the United States particifgaite wars or military or other action or by interrieonal terrorism.

Involvement in a war or other military action ortsof terrorism may cause significant disruptiorctonmerce throughout the world. To
extent that such disruptions result in (i) delaysancellations of customer orders, (ii) a gendeadrease in consumer spending on inform.
technology, (iii) our inability to effectively maek and distribute our services or products or Guj inability to access capital markets,
business and results of operations could be mlyedad adversely affected. We are unable to ptedhether the involvement in a war
other military action will result in any long-teroommercial disruptions or if such involvement cspenses will have any lortgrm materic
adverse effect on our business, results of opestior financial condition.

Our exposure to the credit risk of our customerscagsuppliers may adversely affect our financial résu

We sell our products to customers that have inpth&t, and may in the future, experience finandificdlties. If our customers experier
financial difficulties, we could have difficulty cevering amounts owed to us from these customelsleWve perform credit evaluations ¢
adjust credit limits based upon each custom@dyment history and credit worthiness, such progrmay not be effective in reducing
exposure to credit risk. We evaluate the colletitstof accounts receivable, and based on thisuataln make adjustments to the allowanc:
doubtful accounts for expected losses. Actual ket drite-offs may differ from our estimates, which may havenaterial adverse effect on
financial condition, operating results and caskwfio

Our suppliers may also experience financial diffies, which could result in our having difficulgourcing the materials and component:
use in producing our products and providing ouvises. If we encounter such difficulties, we may be able to produce our products for
customers in a timely fashion which could have dwease effect on our results of operations, finanobndition and cash flows.

The changes in the economy and credit markets mdyeasely affect our future results of operations.

Our operations and performance depend to some e@egregeneral economic conditions and their impacioor customersfinances an
purchase decisions. As a result of economic eygotential customers may elect to defer purcha$espital equipment items, such as
products we manufacture and supply. Additionathe credit markets and the financial services itrgiuare subject to change. While
ultimate outcome of these events cannot be pretlidtenay have a material adverse effect on outocnsrs’ ability to fund their operatiol
thus adversely impacting their ability to purchase products or to pay for our products on a tintegis, if at all. These and other econc
factors could have a material adverse effect onatehfor our products, the collection of payments dar products and on our financ
condition and operating results.

We may not be able to obtain payment and performabonds, which could have a material adverse effmtur business.

Our ability to deploy our EcoSmart Suite of produitto the energy management initiatives in fednatled or assisted projects may rel
our ability to obtain payment and performance bomtigch may be an essential element to work ordarshie installation of our products ¢
services. If we are unable to obtain payment arébpmance bonds in a timely fashion as requiredrwapplicable work order, we may no
entitled to payment under the work order until shohds have been provided or until such a requingriseexpressly waived. In addition, i
delays due to a failure to furnish bonds may nditlerus to a price increase for the work or areaston of time to complete the work and 1
entitle the other party to terminate our work ordéhout liability and to indemnify such party frodamages suffered as a result of our fa
to deliver the bonds and the termination of thelknander. As a result, the failure to obtain bondeere required could negatively impact
business, results of operations, and prospects.
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Risks Relating to Our Financial Results and Need forinancing

Our independent registered public accounting firmas expressed substantial doubt about our abilityctmtinue as a going concern, whi
may hinder our ability to obtain future financing.

In their report dated April 1, 2013, our independesgistered public accounting firmreport on our consolidated financial statemeotgte
year ended December 31, 2012 included an explanptoagraph relating to our ability to continueaagoing concern based on our histor
operating cash flow deficits, liquidity constrairded negative working capital. Although we havporéed net income for the year enc
December 31, 2012, we may experience net operbigsgs and operating cash flow deficits in therfutuOur ability to continue as a go
concern is subject to our ability to generate afiprpositive operating cash flows and/or obtaircemsary funding from outside sourt
including by the sale of our securities or assmtgbtaining loans from financial institutions, wheossible. Our history of net operating lo
and the uncertainty regarding contingent liab#ito@st doubt on our ability to meet such goals.

We have a limited number of shares of common stagkilable for future issuance which could adverselffect our ability to raise capital ¢
consummate acquisitions.

We are currently authorized to issue 190,000,0@0eshof common stock under our Articles of Incogpion. As of March 22, 2013, we h;
issued 108,103,001 shares of common stock and d@meximately 148,175,932 shares of common stasked or committed for issuat
after giving effect to the assumed exercise obatstanding warrants and options and assumed caionesf preferred stock. Due to the limi
number of authorized shares available for issuamckebecause of the significant competition for &itjans, we may not able to consumn
an acquisition until we increase the number of ehave are authorized to issue. To facilitate tesibility and flexibility of raising addition
capital or the completion of potential acquisitiong would need to seek stockholder approval teegse the number of our authorized st
of common stock. We can provide no assuranceabatill succeed in amending our Articles of Incamgiion to increase the number of sh
of common stock we are authorized to issue.

Although we are reporting net income for the yeanded December 31, 2012, we have a history of opegalosses and an accumulat
deficit and may incur losses in the foreseeableuiig.

Since inception through December 31, 2012, we hagerred cumulative losses of $117,954,116 and heaxer generated enough fu
through operations to support our business. Foy#ze ended December 31, 2012, we had an operedsty flow deficit of $188,985. As
December 31, 2012, we have a working capital serplu$414,649. Because of the numerous risks awertainties associated with
technology, the industry in which we operate, atfteofactors, we are unable to predict the extérany future losses or if we will rem:
profitable. If we are unable to generate suffitimvenues from our operations to meet our worlkiagital requirements, we expect to fine
our future cash needs through public or debt fimegec We cannot be certain that additional fundinijbe available on acceptable terms, ¢
all.

Our business activities might require additionainfincing that might not be obtainable on acceptalidgms, if at all, which could have
material adverse effect on our financial conditiofiquidity and our ability to operate going forward

The actual amount of capital required to fund guerations and development may vary materially foam estimates. If our operations fai
generate the cash that we expect, we may haveskoasklitional capital to fund our business. If we gequired to obtain additional funding
the future, we may have to sell assets, seek delrtding or obtain additional equity capital. Irdégbn, any indebtedness we incur in the fu
could subject us to restrictive covenants limitmg flexibility in planning for, or reacting to chges in, our business. If we do not comply
such covenants, our lenders could accelerate regratyafi our debt or restrict our access to furthmrdwings. The Wisconsin Departmen
Commerce Loan Agreement contains covenants whighines among other things, that the Company shedpkand maintain 75 existing full-
time positions and create and fill 35 additiondl-fime positions in Milwaukee, Wisconsin by DecemBgr 2012. Under the terms of the L
Agreement, for each new full time position not keptated or maintained, the Company would be reduib pay a penalty consisting of
incremental increase in the interest rate not tweed 4%. In May of 2012, the Company notified trep&rtment that due to the econao
climate, it was unlikely that the 35 new full tinp@sition covenant would be met by December 31, 2@? June 18, 2012, the Departn
agreed to waive all penalties associated with twegant and keep the loan interest rate fixed at 2%

Under terms of the Dynamic Rating promissory ntte,Company shall average at least $250,000 afluisbrship sales revenue per calel
year. The Company is currently not compliant witls tstipulation. No penalties or interest existdion compliance
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If we raise funds by selling more stock, your ovamgp in us will be diluted, and we may grant futimeestors rights superior to those of
common stock that you hold. If we are unable tawbadditional capital when needed, we may hawetay, modify or abandon some of
expansion plans. This could slow our growth, negdi affect our ability to compete in our industayd adversely affect our financ
condition.

A significant portion of our total assets consisté goodwill and intangible assets, which are subjéo periodic impairment analysis, and
significant impairment determination could have aadverse effect on our results of operations anddittial condition even without
significant loss of revenue or increase in cash exyges attributable to such perio

During the year ended December 31, 2012, manageaighe Company assessed and determined that timeatsd carrying value of tl
Companys Smart Systems International reporting unit didex@eed its estimated fair value, therefore naaimmpent charge was recorded.
the year ended December 31, 2011, the Companydeta material impairment charge of $3.1 milliorgtmdwill. We have goodwill ai
intangible assets of approximately $8.6 million &5 million, respectively, at December 31, 20&8utting from past acquisitions. !
evaluate this goodwill for impairment based on fifie value of the operating business units to witltil goodwill relates at least once a
during the fourth quarter, or more frequently ihddions exist that indicate a potential impairmefihis estimated fair value could chanc
we are unable to achieve operating results atetedd that have been forecasted, the market vatuafithose business units decreases bas
transactions involving similar companies, or thisra permanent, negative change in the market defiesirthe services offered by the busir
units. These changes could result in an additionphirment of the existing goodwill balance in flwure that could require a material non
cash charge to our results of operations.

Our failure to comply with covenants under debt tngments could trigger prepayment obligations.

Our failure to comply with the covenants under dabt instruments could result in an event of defauhich, if not cured or waived, cot
result in us being required to repay these borrgwibefore their due date. If we are forced toneefte these borrowings on less favor
terms, our results of operations and financial @mcould be adversely affected by increasedscast rates.

If we fail to remain current on our reporting requements, we could be removed from the OTC BulleéBioard, which would limit the abilit
of broker-dealers to sell our securities and theilap of stockholders to sell their securities ilné secondary market

Companies trading on the OTC Bulletin Board, suslis must be reporting issuers under Section H#0$ecurities Exchange Act of 1934
amended, or the Exchange Act, and must be cumethteir reports under Section 13 of the Exchangei\order to maintain price quotati
privileges on the OTC Bulletin Board. If we fad temain current on our reporting requirementscad be removed from the OTC Bulle
Board. As a result, the market liquidity for oecarities could be severely adversely affectedrhiting the ability of brokerdealers to sell o
securities and the ability of stockholders to #&tir securities in the secondary market.

We have debt agreements that contain certain evefitdefault and are collateralized by substantialiyf of our assets.

We have a $300,000 outstanding term debt with thte®f Wisconsirs Department of Commerce that matures in Decemb#s.20ur del
agreement contains certain events of default, dicly among other things, failure to pay, violatimihcovenants, and certain other expre
enumerated events. The State of Wisconsin holilstaoriority security interest in our assetswié were to trigger an event of default unde|
agreement, it would have a significant negativeaotmn our business.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES.

The Company presently leases approximately 14,00@are feet of office space in Milwaukee, Wiscorfeinits corporate headquarters.
Milwaukee lease expires in March 2020.

The Company presently leases 16,416 square feebrofmercial office space in Germantown, Marylandhe Tease commitments expire
December 2015. On July 15, 2011, the Company eadcat sublease agreement for 11,626 square feebrofmercial office space
Germantown, Maryland. Because we no longer havesacto this subleased space, we recorded a chiafii®,037 in accrued liabilities a
expenses related to this abandonment during 20d1lude 27, 2012 the subtenant exercised the oftiertend the expiration of the terrr
the sublease from January 31, 2013 to Decembe2(@H and we recorded an additional charge of $¥32during the year ended Decen
31, 2012. The remaining liability at December 3112 is $135,975.
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ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS.

Linksmart Wireless Technology, LLC v. T-Mobile USA, Inc.

On July 1, 2008, Linksmart Wireless Technology, LId€ Linksmart, filed a civil lawsuit in the EasteDistrict of Texas against EthoStre:
LLC, our wholly-owned subsidiary and 22 other defants (Linksmart Wireless Technology, LLC v. T-Mobile UB®,, et al, U.S. Distric
Court, for the Eastern District of Texas, MarsHaivision, No. 2:08-cv-00264). This lawsuit allegist the defendantservices infringe
wireless network security patent held by Linksmaitksmart seeks a permanent injunction enjoinhmgdefendants from infringing, induc
the infringement of, or contributing to the infremgent of its patent, an award of damages and afttxfiees.

Defendant Ramada Worldwide, Inc. provided us wittiae of the suit and demanded that we defend addnnify it pursuant to a venc
direct supplier agreement between EthoStream andVBipplier Services, Inc., a Ramada affiliate (whewe agreed to indemnify, defe
and hold only Ethostream supported Ramada propdriemless from and against claims of infringemeAfer a review of that agreemen
was determined that EthoStream owes the duty tende&nd indemnify with respect to services providgdrelkonet to Ramada and it |
assumed Ramada’s defense.

The parties in the lawsuit agreed to and the Contered a stay of the litigation pending the cosicln of a reexamination proceeding in
U.S. Patent and Trademark Office relating to theemtainvolved in the lawsuit. The case was reoddanesarly 2012 based on the expecte
that a reexamination certificate would be issuedhayPatent Office. The reexamination certificaas been issued. After the case resume:
parties agreed to a “transfer” of the case fromBhstern District of Texas to the Central Disto€tCalifornia. To accomplish the “transfer,”
with the agreement of the parties, the Texas casedismissed and a new action was filed in Califoom April 5, 2012. Cinksmart Wireles
Technology, LLC v. T-Mobile USA, Inc., et &.S. District Court, for the Central District 6flifornia, Southern Division, No. SACV 12-522-
JST). The parties have answered the complaint filatie new action and the court has set the tiigacalendar with trial set for June 20
Management is unable to predict the ultimate regwiwof this matter.

Stephen L. Sadle v. Telkonet, Inc

On April 15, 2011, a former executive, Stephen BdIB, served Telkonet, Inc. and Telkonet Commuiuinat Inc. ("Telkonet") with
Complaint in the Circuit Court for Montgomery CoynMD alleging (1) Breach of Contract, (2) Promigss&stoppel/Detrimental Reliance ¢
(3) violation of Maryland's Wage Payment and Cditat Act. The three claims in his Complaint eacbsar out of his departure in 2007
terms of relief, Mr. Sadle sought "severance corspgon” in the amount of $195,000, treble damaigésrest, and attorney&es. This lawsu
was resolved as part of a voluntary settlementr poidhe scheduled jury trial beginning on May 2812. On July 26, 2012, the Parties file
Joint Stipulation of Dismissal with prejudice.

In the case ofStephen L. Sadle v Telkonet, Incthe parties executed a settlement agreement andra release on July 2, 2012
$100,000. Terms of the agreement called for Tadkém make an initial payment of $30,000 on Jun20L2 and Telkonet made an additic
scheduled payment on September 1, 2012. The rergdialance was paid in three equal installmentsbych 1, 2013.

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES.

None.

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND IS SUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES.

Our common stock is currently quoted on the OTAdim Board under the symbol “TKOL.”
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The following table sets forth the quarterly higiddow bid prices for our common stock for the weanded December 31, 2012 and 2011.

High Low
Year Ended December 31, 2012
First Quartel $ 02: $ 0.1«
Second Quarte 0.21 0.1:
Third Quartel 0.21 0.1z
Fourth Quarte 0.1¢ 0.1z
Year Ended December 31, 201
First Quarte! $ 01: % 0.0¢
Second Quarte 0.2: 0.11
Third Quartel 0.2 0.1z
Fourth Quarte 0.2z 0.1:

Record Holders
As of March 22, 2013, we had 189 shareholdersadrceand 108,103,001 shares of our common stoakdsand outstanding.
Dividend Policy

The Company has never paid dividends on its comstmek and does not anticipate paying dividend&énforeseeable future. It is also suk
to certain contractual restrictions on paying dévids on its common stock under the terms of iteSéy and B preferred stock.

Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use Bfoceeds

None.

ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

This item is not applicable.

ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FI NANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS.

The following discussion and analysis of our firiahcondition and results of operations should lead in conjunction with the accompany
financial statements and related notes ther

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conftymiith accounting principles generally acceptedha United States of America require:
to make estimates and assumptions that affectrttmuats reported in the consolidated financial statgs and accompanying notes. O
ongoing basis, we evaluate significant estimatesd us preparing our consolidated financial stateimemcluding those related to reve
recognition, fair value of financial instrumentsiagantees and product warranties, stock based cwmatien, potential impairment of good\
and other londived assets, contingent liabilities and businemslzinations. We base our estimates on historigpééence, underlying n
rates and various other assumptions that we betievge reasonable, the results of which form th&isbfor making judgments about
carrying values of assets and liabilities. Actuesults could differ from these estimates. Theofeihg are critical judgments, assumptions,
estimates used in the preparation of the conselitifibancial statements.

Revenue Recoghnitio

For revenue from product sales, we recognize rev@maccordance with ASC 60®, and ASC Topic 13 guidelines that require tbat basi
criteria must be met before revenue can be recedni@l) persuasive evidence of an arrangementseX} delivery has occurred; (3)
selling price is fixed and determinable; and (4)lemtability is reasonably assured. Determinatidncoteria (3) and (4) are based
managemens$ judgments regarding the fixed nature of the rsgllprices of the products delivered and the callaitity of those amount
Provisions for discounts and rebates to custonestanated returns and allowances, and other adgudthare provided for in the same pe
the related sales are recorded. The guidelinesaldoess the accounting for arrangements that mayivie the delivery or performance
multiple products, services and/or rights to usets
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We provide call center support services to propsrinstalled by us and also to properties instdifedther providers. In addition, we prov
the property with the portal to access the Inteé receive monthly service fees from such progefor our services and Internet access
recognize the service fee ratably over the terrthefcontract. The prices for these services aedfand determinable prior to delivery of
service. The fair value of these services is knolwa to objective and reliable evidence from consrand standalone sales. We report
revenues as recurring revenues.

Multiple-Element Arrangements (“MEAs”)fhe Company accounts for large contracts that bate product and installation under the Mt
guidance in ASC 605. The Company believes the velofithese large contracts will continue to incesgsrangements under such contr
may include multiple deliverables, a combinationegliipment and services. The deliverables includetie MEAs are separated into m
than one unit of accounting when (i) the deliveemlipment has value to the customer on a s&dmake basis, and (ii) delivery of f
undelivered service element(s) is probable andtanbally in our control. Arrangement consideratisrthen allocated to each unit, delivere
undelivered, based on the relative selling prié®3P”) of each unit of accounting based first ondarspecific objective evidence (“VSOHT)
it exists, second on third-party evidence (“TPE'l} exists and on estimated selling price (“ESPTeither VSOE or TPE exist.

* VSOE - In most instances, products are sold séggrin standalone arrangements. Services are also sold sepatatoug!
renewals of contracts with varying periods. Weedaine VSOE based on its pricing and discountinactices for the specit
product or service when sold separately, considegeographical, customer, and other economic oketiag variables, as well
renewal rates or sta-alone prices for the service element

» TPE - If we cannot establish VSOE of selling erfor a specific product or service included in altiple-element arrangement,
use thirdparty evidence of selling price. We determine TiSed on sales of comparable amount of similarymtodr servic
offered by multiple third parties considering thegcee of customization and similarity of producservice sold

» ESP — The estimated selling price representptive at which we would sell a product or servité iwere sold on a stanalone
basis. When VSOE does not exist for all elementsdetermine ESP for the arrangement element basedles, cost and mar
analysis, as well as other inputs based on itsngripractices. Adjustments for other market andn@anyspecific factors are ma
as deemed necessary in determining E

When MEAs include an element of customer trainihgs not essential to the functionality, efficignor effectiveness of the MEA. Therefi
the Company has concluded that this obligationnomsequential and perfunctory. As such, for MEAat tinclude training, custon
acceptance is not deemed necessary in order tadrebe related revenue, but is recorded when tltallation deliverable is fulfiller
Historically, training revenues have not been digant.

Total revenues do not include sales tax as we densurselves a pass through conduit for collectimd remitting sales taxes.
Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Company accounts for the fair value of finahicistruments in accordance with ASC 820, whichries fair value for accounting purpos
establishes a framework for measuring fair valug expands disclosure requirements regarding fairevaneasurements. Fair value is def
as an exit price, which is the price that wouldreeeived upon sale of an asset or paid upon tran$fe liability in an orderly transacti
between market participants at the measurement ddte degree of judgment utilized in measuring fihie value of assets and liabilit
generally correlates to the level of pricing obsdility. Financial assets and liabilities with dég available, actively quoted prices or
which fair value can be measured from actively gdoprices in active markets generally have moreimgiobservability and require I¢
judgment in measuring fair value. Conversely, ficial assets and liabilities that are rarely tradediot quoted have less price observat
and are generally measured at fair value usingatiain models that require more judgment. Theseat&in techniques involve some leve
management estimation and judgment, the degredichvis dependent on the price transparency oésiset, liability or market and the nal
of the asset or liability. We have categorized fiancial assets and liabilities that are recwyiat fair value into a threlevel hierarchy i
accordance with these provisions.

Guarantees and Product Warranties

The Company records a liability for potential watsaclaims. The amount of the liability is basedtba trend in the historical ratio of claim:
sales. The products sold are generally covered Wwgreanty for a period of one year. In the evert @ompany determines that its currer
future product repair and replacement costs exiteetimates, an adjustment to these reservesivibieutharged to earnings in the period
determination is made. During the years ended Dbee 31, 2012 and 2011, the Company experiencew@prately between 1% and 4%
returns related to product warranties. As of Decen#i, 2012 and 2011, the Company recorded wartaitiities in the amount of $69,7
and $104,423, respectively, using this experieaceof range.
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Stock Based Compensatic

We account for our stock based awards in accordaitbeASC 718, which requires a fair value measwgetrand recognition of compensai
expense for all shafgased payment awards made to our employees amtiodgeincluding employee stock options and resdstock award:

We estimate the fair value of stock options granisithg the Blackscholes valuation model. This model requires um#aike estimates a
assumptions including, among other things, estimaggarding the length of time an employee wilhietvested stock options before exerci
them and the estimated volatility of our commorcktprice. The fair value is then amortized on aigtitdine basis over the requisite sen
periods of the awards, which is generally the wesfieriod. Changes in these estimates and assuragiam materially affect the determina
of the fair value of stock-based compensation amsequently, the related amount recognized in onsalidated statements of operations.

Goodwill and Other Intangibles

In accordance with the accounting guidance on gdbdwd other intangible assets, we perform an ahimpairment test of goodwill at ¢
reporting unit level and other intangible assetsuatunit of account level, or more frequentlyveats or circumstances change that would |
likely than not reduce the fair value of our repagtunits below their carrying value. Amortizatierecorded for other intangible assets "
determinable lives using the straight line methedrdhe 12 year estimated useful life. Goodwikigject to a periodic impairment assessi
by applying a fair value test based upon a step method. The first step of the process conspihue fair value of the reporting unit with
carrying value of the reporting unit, including aggodwill. We utilize a discounted cash flow valoa methodology (income approach
determine the fair value of the reporting unit.isTapproach is developed from managenseftttecasted cash flow data. If the fair valuehe
reporting unit exceeds the carrying amount of #orting unit, goodwill is deemed not to be impdir the carrying amount exceeds
value, we calculate an impairment loss. Any impaint loss is measured by comparing the implied alue of goodwill to the carryit
amount of goodwill at the reporting unit, with teecess of the carrying amount over the fair vakegdgnized as an impairment loss.

Significant assumptions used in our goodwill impsnt test at December 31, 2012 and 2011 includegeated revenue growth rai
operating unit profit margins, working capital lés/ediscount rates of 12.9% and 17.5% for Ethostread SSI, respectively, and a term
value multiple. The expected future revenue gromatlks and the expected operating unit profit margiare determined after considering
historical revenue growth rates and operating praofit margins, our assessment of future markeemtidl, and our expectations of fut
business performance.

At December 31, 2011, the Company determined thmirtion of the value Smart Systems Internaticngbodwill was impaired based uj
managemens assessment of operating results and forecastedutited cash flow and has recorded an impairnferge of $3,100,000. T
goodwill and intangible asset impairment charge was-cash in nature and did not impact our liquiditysttdlows provided by operati
activities or future operations.

Long-Lived Assets

We review longlived assets for impairment whenever events or gaaiin circumstances indicate that the carryinguarhof an asset may r
be recoverable in accordance with ASC 360-10 (folyr@&tatement of Financial Accounting Standards Nit, Accountingfor the Impairmer
or Disposal of Long-Lived AssetsRecoverability is measured by comparison ofdagying amount to the future net cash flows whicé
assets are expected to generate. If such asset®m@sidered to be impaired, the impairment todm®gnized is measured by the amour
which the carrying amount of the assets exceedsptbgcted discounted future cash flows arisingrfrthe asset using a discount
determined by management to be commensurate véthigk inherent to our current business model.

Contingent Liabilities - Sales Tax

The Company engaged a sales tax consultant ta @assietermining the extent of its potential saf@s exposure. Based upon this anal
management determined the Company had probablesabgor certain unpaid obligations, including et and penalty, of approximat
$1,100,000 including and prior to the year endeddbeber 31, 2011. The Company has approximately0$1020 and $1,100,000 accrued
this exposure as of December 31, 2012 and 201{dectsely.

The Company continues to manage the liability byaldshing voluntary disclosure agreements (VDAsthvthe applicable states, wh
establishes a maximum lodidack period and payment arrangements. Howeveheifaforementioned methods prove unsuccessful lze
Company is examined or challenged by taxing autiksrithere exists possible exposure of an ad@iti$620,000, not including any applice
interest and penalties.
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During 2012, the Company successfully executedpid in full VDAs in five states totaling approxitety $23,000 and is current with
subsequent filing requirements. It has submittedA¥vith an additional twentgeven states and awaits notification of acceptahee. state
offer no voluntarily disclosure program. The Compatso confirmed that one customer had self asde$seher reducing our liability ai
expense associated with that liability by approxeha$151,000.

Results of Operations

Year Ended December 31, 2012 Compared to Year Erdlecember 31, 2011

Revenues

The table below outlines our product versus rengrrevenues for comparable periods:

Year Ended December 3

2012 2011 Variance
Product $ 8,537,17! 67% % 6,654,28; 60% $ 1,882,88: 28%
Recurring 4,221,201 33% 4,526,68! 40% (305,47 -T%
Total $ 12,758,37 100 $ 11,180,96 100% $ 1,577,41. 14%

Product revenue

Product revenue principally arises from the sale amstallation of EcoSmart Suite of products, S@&ad and High Speed Inten
Access equipment. These include TSE, Telkonee$®, Telkonet iWire, and wireless networking quots. We market and sell to
hospitality, education, healthcare and governméilitary markets. The Telkonet Series 5 and thekdeét iWire products consist of 1
Telkonet Gateways, Telkonet Extenders, the patefitdkionet Coupler, and Telkonet iBridges. The Boa8 Suite of products consist
thermostats, sensors, controllers, wireless netwgrkroducts switches, outlets and a control ptatfoThe HSIA product suite consists
gateway servers, switches and access points.

For the year ended December 31, 2012, product vevercreased $1.88 million when compared to therpréar. Product revenue in 2(
included approximately $5.64 million attributedtt® sale and installation of energy managementuamtsdapproximately $2.86 million for 1
sale and installation of HSIA products, and appr@ately $0.04 million attributable to the sale ofkbmet Series 5 Smart Grid products. S
our sales of energy management and HSIA produetsapital intensive, specifically in the hospitaliharket, we have been impacted by
slow and tenuous economic recovery.

Recurring Revenug

Recurring revenue is primarily attributed to reaugrservices. The Company recognizes revenue kataldr the service month for mont
support revenues and defers revenue for annuabsuggrvices over the term of the service peridte flecurring revenue consists primaril
HSIA support services and advertising revenue. ehiilsing revenue is based on impresdiased statistics for a given period from custc
site visits to the Company’s login portal page urithe terms of advertising agreements enteredviitio third-parties. A component of ¢
recurring revenue is derived from fees, less payloasts, associated with approximately 1% of owgpiitality customers who do not intern:
manage guest-related, internet transactions.

Recurring revenue includes approximately 2,300/bdteour broadband network portfolio. We currgrglipport approximately 233,000 HS
rooms, with approximately 5.2 million monthly usefSor the year ended December 31, 2012, recunéngnue decreased by 7% w
compared to the prior year. The decrease of negurevenue was primarily attributed to a $0.4 imilldecrease in advertising revenue part
offset by a $0.04 million increase of new HSIA amers added in 2012.

Cost of Sales

Year ended December =

2012 2011 Variance
Product $ 4,726,24. 55% $ 3,820,75: 57% $ 905,48t 24%
Recurring 1,178,07 28% 1,146,25. 25% 31,82¢ 3%
Total $  5,904,31L 46% $  4,967,00! 44%  $ 937,31: 19%
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Product Costs

Costs of product sales include equipment and iasiah labor related to the sale of SmartGrid armhdband networking equipment, incluc
EcoSmart technology and Telkonet iWire. For tharyended December 31, 2012, product costs incréas@d% when compared to the p
year. The increase was attributed to the additionat of goods sold and services associated wihritrease in product sales and the u:
additional subcontractor services for installations

Recurring Costs

Recurring costs are comprised of labor and teleconication services for our Customer Service depamtmFor the year ended Decembe
2012, recurring costs increased by 3% when compardftke prior year. This increase was primarilg do the addition of support center <
and telecomm costs associated with increased claline.

Gross Profit

Year ended December &

2012 2011 Variance
Product $ 3,810,92! 45%  $ 2,833,52! 3% 3 977,40( 34%
Recurring 3,043,12! 72% 3,380,42 75% (337,299 -10%
Total $  6,854,05 54 $  6,213,95 56% $ 640,10: 10%

Product Gross Profi

The gross profit on product revenue for the yeateenDecember 31, 2012 increased by 34% compartgetprior year period. The variar
was a result of increased product sales and iastall on energy management and HSIA sales. Ous egsbciated with inventory managen
freight out and returns and allowances also impdove

Recurring Gross Profit

Our gross profit associated with recurring revehae been and will continue to be, affected by éwell of advertising revenue. For the y
ended December 31, 2012, our gross profit decreagd®d% when compared to the prior year. The desgrevas mainly due to a decreas
advertising revenue which yields higher gross nmexgi

Operating Expenses

Year ended December &
2012 2011 Variance

Total $ 6,484,38. $ 8,796,43 $ (2,312,04) -26%

During the year ended December 31, 2012, operatipgnses decreased by 26% when compared to theypean This decrease is prima
related to a non-cash goodwill impairment chargeSomart Systems International of $3,100,000 in 20E#cluding this noreash charg
operating expenses would have increased by 14%adthe increase in research and development aesyiprofessional fees associated
prior period financial statement restatements acldaage for the lease abandonment.

Research and Development

Year ended December &
2012 2011 Variance

Total $ 984,85. $ 775,32¢ $ 209,52« 27%

Our research and development costs related tofretient and future products are expensed in thiedpieicurred. Total expenses for rese
and development increased by 27% for the year emssbmber 31, 2012. This increase is attributed¢diosulting fees, Underwrites’
Laboratories (UL) certification and testing cosssa@ciated with the continued development of out gereration energy efficiency products.
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Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

Year ended December =
2012 2011 Variance

Total $ 5,238,701 $ 4,652,552 $ 586,17: 13%

Selling, general and administrative expenses isekdor the year ended December 31, 2012 overrbe year by 13%. This increase v
primarily the result of professional fees associatéth prior period financial restatements, a $132, charge for the lease abandonmen:
additional sales and marketing staff and relatgubnges.

Goodwill Impairment

Year ended December =
2012 2011 Variance

Total $ 0 $ 3,100,000 $ (3,100,001 -100%

During the year ended December 31, 2011, the Coynmorded a goodwill impairment charge on Smast&wys International.

Liguidity and Capital Resources

We have financed our operations since inceptiomaily through private and public offerings of aguity securities, the issuance of var
debt instruments and asset based lending.

Working Capital

Our working capital (current assets in excess ofer liabilities) increased by $1,189,564 durihg tyear ended December 31, 2012 frc
working capital deficit of $774,915 at December 3011 to working a capital surplus of $414,649 at&@nber 31, 2012.

Business Loan

On September 11, 2009, the Company entered intoam lAgreement in the aggregate principal amoun$38f0,000 with the Wiscons
Department of Commerce (the “DepartmentThe outstanding principal balance bears intereffteainnual rate of 2%. Payment of interes!
principal is to be made in the following manne): gayment of any and all interest that accrues ftoendate of disbursement commence
January 1, 2010 and continued on the first dayaoheconsecutive month thereafter through and imguBbecember 31, 2010; (b) commenc
on January 1, 2011 and continuing on the firstafagach consecutive month thereafter through addding November 1, 2016, the Comp
shall pay equal monthly installments of $4,426 edoliowed by a final installment on December 1,180which shall include all remaini
principal, accrued interest and other amounts omethe Company to the Department under the Loareédment. The Company may pre
amounts outstanding under the credit facility inokehor in part at any time without penalty. The ha®sgreement is secured by substantiall
of the Companys assets and the proceeds from this loan werefaséte working capital requirements of the Compartye Loan Agreeme
contains covenants which require, among other fittgat the Company shall keep and maintain 75iegi$ull-time positions and create ¢
fill 35 additional fulltime positions in Milwaukee, Wisconsin by DecemBg&r 2012. Under the terms of the Loan Agreementeéeh new fu
time position not kept, created or maintained, @wmpany would be required to pay a penalty comgjstif an incremental increase in
interest rate not to exceed 4%. In May of 2012,Gbenpany notified the Department that due to thenemic climate, it is unlikely that the
new full time position covenant will be met by Deadser 31, 2012. On June 18, 2012, the Departmeereddo waive all penalties associ:
with the covenant and keep the loan interest liatgifat 2%. The outstanding borrowings under theement as of December 31, 2012
2011 were $203,947 and $252,454, respectively.
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Promissory Note #1

On March 4, 2011, the Company sold all its Seri€.& product line assets to Wisconsin-based Dyndtaiings, Inc. (“Purchaseri)nder a
Asset Purchase Agreement (“APA”). Per the APA, @mmpany signed an unsecured Promissory Note (‘K¢ due to Purchaser in t
aggregate principal amount of $700,000. The outltanprincipal balance bears interest at the anratal of 6% and is due on March
2014. Note #1 may be prepaid in whole or in pawtithout penalty at any timeNote #1 contains certain eaont provisions that encompi
both the Company’s and Purchaser’s revenue volumesounts earned under the eamt provisions shall be applied against Note #Dwme
30, 2012 and June 30, 2013. As of June 30, 20&2ndm cash reduction of principal calculated uridese provisions and applied to the |
was $15,408. Payments not made when due, by maturity acceleratimtherwise, shall bear interedtthe rate of12 % per annunfrom the
date due until fully paid. The outstanding principal &ateof this note as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 vé&l,$92 and $700,0(
respectively.

Promissory Note #2

From the sale of its Series 5 PLC product line tasske Company used the proceeds received te mailvstantially all of its obligations un
its $1.6 million senior convertible debenture duayM29, 2011 and to cancel the related warrantsroayé1.7 million shares of the Compasy’
common stock. In exchange for the early retirementebt and cancellation of warrants, the Compprgrvided the third party with
unsecured one-year promissory note (“Note #2"fa0,000 with interest at 5.25%he outstanding principal balance as of DecembgP@1
was $12,746 and the note was paid in full duringd12012.

Proceeds From the Issuance of Series B Preferreddsk

On August 4, 2010, the Company entered into a 8&=1Purchase Agreement in connection with a peiydacement of 267 shares Serit
Convertible Redeemable Preferred Stock, par valué0f per share and warrants to purchase an aggrefs,134,626 shares of comn
stock, par value $0.001 per share. The Series Bsheere sold at a price per share of $5,000 amdarrants have an exercise price of $(
which is equal to the closing bid price of a shafreommon stock on August 4, 2010. The Company detag a private placement on Aug
6, 2010 and received gross proceeds of $1,335r000the sale of these Series B shares and warrants.

On April 8, 2011, the Company entered into a SéesriPurchase Agreement in connection with a peiyddcement of 271 shares of Serit
Convertible Redeemable Preferred Stock, par valu@0f per share, and warrants to purchase an aggref 5,211,542 shares of comr
stock, par value $0.001 per share. The SeriesaBzstwere sold for $5,000 per share and the warteave an exercise price of $0.13, whic
equal to the closing bid price of a common stockrston August 4, 2010, the date of the originaldsse of Series B shares. The Com,
completed the private placement on April 8, 201d @teived gross proceeds of $1,355,000 from tleecdahese Series B shares and warr:

Preferred stock carries certain preference rightdedailed in the ComparsyAmended Articles of Incorporation related to btith payment «
dividends and as to payments upon liquidation @fgrence to any other class or series of capibakstf the Company. Liquidation prefere
of the preferred stock is based on the followingeor first, Series B with a preference value of882,833 and second, Series A wil
preference value of $1,176,076 as of December @12.2 Both series of preferred stock are equahdir tdividend preference over comn
stock.

Convertible Debentures

On May 30, 2008, we entered into a Securities Raset\greement with YA Global Investments LP (YA @& pursuant to which we sold
YA Global up to $3,500,000 of secured convertibbehtures and warrants to purchase up to 2,50&0886s of our common stock.
November 2009 and August 2010, we issued to YA @lakditional warrants to purchase, in aggregategp®,230,769 shares of our comr
stock pursuant to anti-dilution provisions in i€sisting warrant agreement.

The debentures accrued interest at a rate of 13%ampeaum and had a maturity date of May 29, 201k W¢é¢re permitted to redeem
debentures at any time, in whole or in part, byipgya redemption premium equal to 15% of the ppatiamount of debentures be
redeemed, so long as an “Equity Conditions Fail¢as"defined in the debentures) is not occurrinthetime of such redemption

On February 20, 2009, we and YA Global entered amtAgreement of Clarification pursuant to which agreed with YA Global that inter

accrued as of December 31, 2008, in the amouni®f 887 would be added to the principal amounttanting under the debentures and
each debenture be amended to reflect the appligatrease in principal amount.
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In November 2009 and again in 2010, we issued iaddit warrants to YA Global pursuant to adiittion provisions in their existing warré
agreements that were triggered by the completicgheSeries A and Series B preferred stock prigkteements.

In the first quarter of 2011, the Company retiratsgantially all of its obligations under its $Ir6llion senior convertible debenture due M
29, 2011 and canceled the related warrants covamimggregate, 11.7 million shares of the Compamgmmon stock. In exchange for
early retirement of debt and cancellation of watsathe Company provided the lender with an unsstoneyear promissory note for $50,(
described in “Promissory Note 2” above.

Cash flow analysis

Cash used in operations was $188,985 and $429,64Tgdthe years ended December 31, 2012 and 2@%pectively. As of December :
2012, our primary capital needs included busingssegly execution, inventory procurement, fundiegfgrmance bonds and managing cul
liabilities.

Cash provided by investing activities from openasiovas $47,905 and $915,645 during the years ebdmgémber 31, 2012 and 20
respectively. During the year ended December 3112¢the Company sold its Series 5 Power Line Qapieduct line and related busin
assets for $1,000,000 in cash.

Cash provided by financing activities was $343,2#id $339,063 during the years ended December 312 d8Ad 2011 respectively. 1
Company received proceeds of $405,000 from theceseeof 3,115,390 Series B Convertible RedeematdfeRed Stock warrants for comr
stock during 2012. The Company completed a priptaeement of Series B preferred stock for proceddil, 355,000, issued a note pay:
for proceeds of $700,000 and repaid convertibledabes of $1,606,023 during 2011.

We are working to manage our current liabilitiesileslwe continue to make changes in operations forave our cash flow and liquidi
position.

Our independent registered public accounting firmeéport on our consolidated financial statemeatsttie year ended December 31, Z
includes an explanatory paragraph relating to dailitya to continue as a going concern. We have iireal operating losses and opera
cashflow deficits in past years and we are depengieon our ability to continue profitable operasoand/or obtain necessary funding f
outside sources, including by the sale of our sgesy or obtaining loans from financial institut®, where possible. These factors, an
others, raise doubt about our ability to contins@aoing concern and may also affect our abiitglitain financing in the future.

Management expects that global economic conditigifiscontinue to present a challenging operatingiemment through 2013; theref
working capital management will continue to be ghhpriority for 2013.

The Company continues to manage the approximat20$000 sales tax liability by establishing VDAstlwihe applicable states, wh
establishes a maximum loddack period and payment arrangements. Howeveheifaforementioned methods prove unsuccessful lze
Company is examined or challenged by taxing autiesrithere exists possible exposure of an ad@iti$620,000, not including any applice
interest and penalties.

During 2012, the Company successfully executedpid in full VDAs in five states totaling approxitety $23,000 and is current with
subsequent filing requirements. It has submittedA¥vith an additional twentgeven states and awaits notification of acceptahee. state
offer no voluntarily disclosure program. The Compatso confirmed that one customer had self asde$seher reducing our liability ai
expense associated with that liability by approxeha$151,000.
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Additional financing may be required in order toeneur current and projected cash flow requiremé&oi®s operations. We cannot prec
should it be needed, whether this new financing gl in the form of equity or debt. We may notdi#e to obtain the necessary additi
capital on a timely basis, on acceptable termst atl. Additional investments are being sought,We cannot guarantee that we will be ab
obtain such investments. Financing transactiong melude the issuance of equity or debt securit@saining credit facilities, or oth
financing mechanisms. However, the trading pritew common stock and the downturn in the U.Sclstand debt markets could mak
more difficult to obtain financing through the issice of equity or debt securities. Even if weabte to raise the funds required, it is pos:
that we could incur unexpected costs and expefaéso collect significant amounts owed to us,experience unexpected cash requiren
that would force us to seek alternative financifgurther, if we issue additional equity or debtwséies, stockholders may experience additi
dilution or the new equity securities may have tdgipreferences or privileges senior to those ddtieng holders of our common stock.
additional financing is not available or is not #afale on acceptable terms, we will have to curail operations.

Inflation
We do not believe that inflation has had a matezfééct on our business, financial condition oruissof operations. If our costs were
become subject to significant inflationary pressuvee may not be able to fully offset such highests through price increases. Our inabilit

failure to do so could adversely affect our bussnésancial condition and results of operations.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

The Company has offalance sheet arrangements related to facilityeleaslso during 2012, the Company was awarded #&aminwith ¢
bonding requirement. The Company satisfied thauirement in the first quarter of 2013 with an imeable standby letter of cre
collateralized by cash in the amount of $382,00@ [Etter of credit expires September 30, 2013.

New Accounting Pronouncements

See Note B of the Consolidated Financial Statemfents description of a new accounting pronouncemen

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK.

This item is not applicable.

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DAT A.

See the Consolidated Financial Statements and Nuwtesto commencing on Page F-1.

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTA NTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE.

None.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedur

We maintain disclosure controls and procedures dhatdesigned to ensure that material informatemjuired to be disclosed in our peric
reports filed under the Securities Exchange Act384, as amended, or 1934 Act, is recorded, predessimmarized, and reported within
time periods specified in the SEEXules and forms and to ensure that such infoamasi accumulated and communicated to our managde
including our chief executive officer and chiefdimcial officer as appropriate, to allow timely dgons regarding required disclosure. Du
the lack of a segregation of duties and the faitarenplement adequate internal control over finan@porting, our principal executive offic
and principal financial officer have concluded tbat disclosure controls and procedures were intffe as of the end of the period covere:
this report.
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Managemen's Report on Internal Control over Financial Repdrtg

Our management is responsible for establishing raathtaining adequate internal control over finahoggorting. The Company’ interna
control over financial reporting is designed toyide reasonable assurances regarding the reliabfliinancial reporting and the preparatiol
the financial statements of the Company in accardamith U.S. generally accepted accounting primsipbr GAAP. Because of its inher
limitations, internal control over financial repioig may not prevent or detect misstatements. Alsgections of any evaluation of effectiver
to future periods are subject to the risk that catmay become inadequate because of changesiditions, or that the degree or complis
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

With the participation of our Chief Executive Ofic our management conducted an evaluation offfbet@eness of our internal control o
financial reporting as of December 31, 2012 basedhe framework in Internal Controltategrated Framework issued by the Committe
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commis$i@DSO"). Based on our evaluation and the matevishknesses described bel
management concluded that the Company did not aiaieffective internal control over financial repiog as of December 31, 2012 base:
the COSO framework criteria. Management has idedtitontrol deficiencies regarding the lack of segttion of duties, failure to implem
adequate internal control over financial reportangd the need for a stronger internal control emwirent. Management of the Comp
believes that these material weaknesses are dbe small size of the Company’s accounting stafie mall size of the Comparsyaccountin
staff may prevent adequate controls in the futsueh as segregation of duties, due to the costifb@fiesuch remediation. We do expec
retain additional personnel to remediate theserabdeficiencies in the future.

These control deficiencies could result in a misstent of account balances resulting in a more tlemmote likelihood that a matel
misstatement to our financial statements may ngirbeented or detected on a timely basis. Accotdjnge have determined that these coi
deficiencies as described above constitute mategaknesses.

In light of these material weaknesses, we performeditional analyses and procedures in order telade that our consolidated finant
statements for the year ended December 31, 2012@&hHincluded in this Annual Report on FormK @vere fairly stated in accordance v
GAAP. Accordingly, management believes that despite material weaknesses, our financial statemfemt¢he years ended December
2012 and 2011 are fairly stated, in all materiapezts, in accordance with GAAP.

This annual report does not include an attestatégnort of our registered public accounting firm aetjng internal control over financ
reporting. Managemerst'report was not subject to attestation by oursteged public accounting firm pursuant to ruleshef Securities at
Exchange Commission that permit us to provide omynagement’s report in this Annual Report on FofaK1

Changes in Internal Controls

During the year ended December 31, 2012, there haea no changes in our internal control over finreporting that have materie
affected or are reasonably likely to materiallyeaffour internal controls over financial reporting.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION.

None.
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PART IlI
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORA TE GOVERNANCE.

Pursuant to General Instruction G(3), information directors and executive officers of the Regidtramd corporate governance mattel
incorporated is incorporated by reference fromdrfiitive proxy statement for the annual sharebpldeeting to be held on June 12, 2013.

Code of Ethics

The Board has approved, and Telkonet has adopit€dda of Ethics that applies to all directors, adfs and employees of Telkonet. A cop
the Company’s Code of Ethics was filed as Exhi#itd the Company’s Annual Report on FormK®8B for the year ended December 31, 2
(filed with the Securities and Exchange CommissianMarch 30, 2004). In addition, the Company wilbyide a copy of its Code of Eth
free of charge upon request to any person subigtiwritten request to the Company’s Chief Exeeu@fficer.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION.

Pursuant to General Instruction G(3), informationexecutive compensation is incorporated by refardrom our definitive proxy statemi
for the annual shareholder meeting to be held oe 12, 2013.

ITEM 12 (a). SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFIC IAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS.

Pursuant to General Instructions G(3), informationsecurity ownership of certain beneficial ownansl management and related stockhe

matters are incorporated by reference from oumndefe proxy statement for the annual shareholdeeting to be held on June 12, 2013.

ITEM 12(b). SECURITIES AUTHORIZED FOR ISSUANCE UND ER EQUITY COMPENSATION PLANS.
The following table provides information concernisgcurities authorized for issuance pursuant tatyegompensation plans approved by
Company'’s stockholders and equity compensationsphan approved by the Company’s stockholders &ectmber 31, 2012.

Equity compensation plans approved by security holers
Equity compensation plans not approved by securitholders

Total

Number of
securities
remaining
Number of available for
securities to be future issuance
issued upon Weighted-average under equity
exercise of exercise price of compensation

outstanding
options, warrants

outstanding
options, warrants

plans (excluding
securities reflectec

and rights and rights in column (a))
@ (b) (©)
1,280,64. $ 0.62 6,452,13
1,280,64 % 0.62 6,452,13
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ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSAC TIONS AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

Pursuant to General Instruction G(3), informationcertain relationships and related transactiomsdirector independence is incorporate:
reference from our definitive proxy statement toe innual shareholder meeting to be held on Jun2013.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES.

Pursuant to General Instruction G(3), informationprincipal accounting fees and services is incatea by reference from our definit
proxy statement for the annual shareholder meétitg held on June 12, 2013.
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PART IV

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULE S.

(@)

Documents filed as part of this repc

1)

(2)

(3)

Financial Statements. The following financial sta¢ats are included in Part Il, Iltem 8 of this AnihRaport on Form 1-K:

Report of Baker Tilly Virchow Krause LLP on Congldied Financial Statements as of and for the yeaded December &
2012 and 201

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31,&012011

Consolidated Statements of Operations for the Yeaded December 31, 2012 and 2
Consolidated Statements of Equity for the Yearsedrdecember 31, 2012 and 2(
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for Yearseiecember 31, 2012 and 2(
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statemt

Financial Statement Schedu

Additional Schedules are omitted as the requirddrination is inapplicable or the information is peated in the financi
statements or related not

Exhibits required to be filed by Item 601 of Rediga S-K
See Exhibit Index located immediately followingsthiem 15

The exhibits filed herewith are attached heretaéex as noted) and those indicated on the Exhibgx which are not file
herewith were previously filed with the Securiteesd Exchange Commission as indica
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EXHIBIT INDEX

The following exhibits are included herein or ingorated by reference:

Exhibit

Number Description Of Document

2.1 Asset Purchase Agreement by and between Telkonet,and Smart Systems International, dated as bfueey 23, 200
(incorporated by reference to our For-K filed on March 2, 2007

2.2 Unit Purchase Agreement by and among Telkonet, EthoStream, LLC and the members of EthoStreant diated as
March 15, 2007 (incorporated by reference to ount¢€-K filed on March 16, 2007

2.3 Asset Purchase Agreement by and between Telkooetiird Dynamic Ratings, Inc. dated as of MarchO4,1%incorporated t
reference to our Form-K filed on March 9, 2011

3.1 Articles of Incorporation of the Registrant (incorpted by reference to our Form 8-K (No. @X®B05), filed on August 30, 20
and our Form -8 (No. 33:-47986), filed on October 16, 20C

3.2 Bylaws of the Registrant (incorporated by referetaceur Registration Statement on Form S-1 (No-333307), filed on Augu
28, 2003

3.3 Amendment to Articles of Incorporation (incorpoitey reference to our Forn-K (No. 002-31972), filed November 18, 200

3.4 Amendment to the Articles of Incorporation (incorgied by reference to our Forr-K filed on August 9, 201C

3.5 Amendment to the Articles of Incorporation, (incorgted by reference to our Forr-K filed on April 13, 2011

3.6 Bylaws of the Registrant ((incorporated by refeeemc our Registration Statement on Form S-1 (N&-BB307), filed o
August 28, 2003

3.7 Amendment to the Articles of Incorporation filedtivthe Secretary of State of Utah (incorporateddfgrence to our Form R-
filed on April 8, 2011

4.1 Senior Convertible Note by Telkonet, Inc. in fawafrPortside Growth & Opportunity Fund (incorporatey reference to o
Form &K (No. 002-31972), filed on October 31, 200

4.2 Warrant to Purchase Common Stock by Telkonet,imvor of Kings Road Investments Ltd. (incorpedby reference to o
Form &K (No. 002-31972), filed on October 31, 200

4.3 Form of Warrant to Purchase Common Stock (incotedréy reference to our Current Report on Form @NK. 00131972)
filed on September 6, 200

4.4 Form of Accelerated Payment Option Warrant to PasehCommon Stock (incorporated by reference to Registratiol
Statement on Form-3 (No. 33:-137703), filed on September 29, 20!

4.5 Senior Note by Telkonet, Inc. in favor of GRQ Cdrtesuis, Inc. (incorporated by reference to our F&®Q (No. 00131972)
filed November 9, 2007

4.6 Warrant to Purchase Common Stock by Telkonet, nnf@avor of GRQ Consultants, Inc. (incorporated éference to our For
1C-Q (No. 00--31972), filed November 9, 200

4.7 Form of Promissory Note (incorporated by referetoceur Form -K (No. 001-31972) filed on May 12, 200t

4.8 Form of Warrant to Purchase Common Stock (incomedrhy reference to our Forr-K (No. 001-31972) filed on May 12, 200

4.9 Promissory Note, dated September 11, 2009, by a@&tadeen Telkonet Inc. and the Wisconsin DepartmdnCammerc
(incorporated by reference to our For-K (No. 001-31972) filed on September 17, 20(

4.10 Form of Warrant to Purchase Common Stock (incomedray reference to our Forr-K filed on November 18, 200¢

411 Form of Warrant to Purchase Common Stock (incomedrhy reference to our Forr-K filed on August 9, 200¢

412 Promissory Note, dated March 4, 2011, issued blgorlt Inc. to Dynamic Ratings, Inc (incorporatedréference to our Form 8-
K filed on March 9, 2011

4.13 Form of Warrant to Purchase Common Stock (incomearhy reference to our Forr-K filed on April 8, 2011)

10.1 Amended and Restated Stock Option Plan (incorpdrhie reference to our Registration Statement omF8F8 (No. 333-
161909), filed on September 14, 20i

10.2 Securities Purchase Agreement, dated February 7,2y and among Telkonet, Inc., Enable Growth rieast LP, Enab

Opportunity Partners LP, Pierce Diversified Strgtdfpster Fund LLC, Ena, Hudson Bay Fund LP and ldodBay Overse:
Fund, Ltd. (incorporated by reference to our CurReport on Form-K filed on February 5, 2007

10.3 Registration Rights Agreement, dated February D72®y and among Telkonet, Inc., Enable Growth rieast LP, Enab
Opportunity Partners LP and Pierce Diversified t8fgg Master Fund LLC, Ena, Hudson Bay Fund LP andddn Bay Overse
Fund, Ltd. (incorporated by reference to our CurReport on Form-K filed on February 5, 2007
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10.4 Loan Agreement, dated September 11, 2009, by abdeba Telkonet, Inc. and the Wisconsin DepartmeénCommerc
(incorporated by reference to our For-K (No. 001-31972) filed on September 17, 20!

10.5 General Business Security Agreement, dated Septeirihe2009, by and between Telkonet, Inc. and thgcvisin Departme
of Commerce (incorporated by reference to our F8-K (No. 001-31972) filed on September 17, 20(

10.6 Series A Convertible Redeemable Preferred StockirBes Purchase Agreement, dated November 16, Zo@8rporated b
reference to our Form-K filed on November 18, 200!

10.7 Series A Convertible Redeemable Preferred Stocksiation Rights Agreement, dated November 16, 200€orporated b
reference to our Form-K filed on November 18, 200!

10.8 Form of Executive Officer Reimbursement Agreemémtdrporated by reference to our For-K filed on November 18, 200¢
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&8{(the Exchange Act, the registrant has duly cadbis report to be signed on its behal
the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

TELKONET, INC.

Dated: April 1, 2013 /s/ Jason L. Tienc
Jason L. Tienor
Chief Executive Office

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgé Act of 1934, this report has been signed belpihe following persons on behalf of
registrant and in the capacities and on the dattisdted.

Name Position Date

/sl Jason L. Tienc Chief Executive Officer and Directi April 1, 2013
Jason Tieno (principal executive officer)

/sl Richard E. Mushrus Controller & Acting Chief Financial Office April 1, 2013
Richard E. Mushrush (principal financial officer)

(principal accounting officer

/s/ | William H. Davis Chairman of the Boar April 1, 2013
William H. Davis

/sl Glenn A. Garlan Director April 1, 2013
Glenn A. Garlanc

/s/ Tim S. Ledwick Director April 1, 2013
Tim S. Ledwick
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BAKER TILLY

Baker Tilly Virchow Krause, T1P
115 S 84% St Ste 400
Milwaukee, WI 33214-1475

tel 414 777 5500

fax 414 TT] 5555

bakerally.com

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Shareholders, Audit Committee and Boardicéd@ors
Telkonet, Inc.
Milwaukee, Wisconsin

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balaheets of Telkonet, Inc. (the "Company") as e€&nber 31, 2012 and 2011, anc
related consolidated statements of operationskistdders' equity and cash flows for the years teeded. These consolidated finan
statements are the responsibility of the Compamadsagement. Our responsibility is to express amiopion these consolidated finan
statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversighamioUnited States). Those stand.
require that we plan and perform the audit to sbtaasonable assurance about whether the consalifiadincial statements are free of mat
misstatement. The Company is not required to hasewere we engaged to perform, an audit of itsrirdl control over financial reportir
Our audits included consideration of its internahtrol over financial reporting as a basis for dasig audit procedures that are appropria
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of esging an opinion on the effectiveness of the comgainternal control over financ
reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinigm. audit includes examining, on a test basis, @@ supporting the amounts
disclosures in the consolidated financial statesiefih audit also includes assessing the accoumptimgiples used and significant estim
made by management as well as evaluating the dvamasolidated financial statement presentation. bgkeve that our audits provide
reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetageferred to above present fairly, in all mater@pects, the financial position of Telkol
Inc. as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 and thetsestitheir operations and cash flows for the ye¢hesr ended, in conformity with U
generally accepted accounting principles.

The accompanying consolidated financial statembate been prepared assuming that the Compan ycwilinue as a going concern.
discussed in Note A to the consolidated financiatesnents, the Company has a history of operatisges and negative cash flows f
operations, and an accumulated deficit of $117BHtthat raise substantial doubt about the Compabjlity to continue as a going conc
In order to sustain continued operations and megethligations, the Company is dependent on théadility of future funding and maintainit
profitability. Management's plans in regard to thezatters are also described in Note A. The cotet@d financial statements do not incl
any adjustments that might result from the outcoffrihis uncertainty.

B M Varhow banse, LLP

Milwaukee, Wisconsin
April 1, 2013
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TELKONET, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
DECEMBER 31, 2012 AND 2011

ASSETS

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalel
Restricted cash on depo
Accounts receivable, n
Inventories

Prepaid expenses

Total current assets

Property and equipment, net

Other assets:
Goodwill

Intangible assets, n
Deposits

Total other assets

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS ' EQUITY
Current liabilities:

Accounts payabl

Notes payabl~ current

Accrued liabilities and expens

Deferred revenue

Customer deposits

Total current liabilities

Long-term liabilities:
Deferred lease liabilit
Notes payabl~ long term
Total long-term liabilities

Redeemable preferred stock

15,000,000 shares authorized, par value $.001 pérase

Series A; 215 shares issued, 185 shares outstaatibgcember 31, 2012 and 2011,
respectively, preference in liquidation of $1,17&@&nd $1,101,848 as of December 31,
2012 and 2011, respective

Series B; 538 shares issued, 493 shares outstaatigcember 31, 2012 and 2011,
respectively, preference in liquidation of $2,888&nd $2,686,997 as of December 31,
2012 and 2011, respectively

Total redeemable preferred stock

Commitments and contingencie!

Stockholders Equity

Common stock, par value $.001 per share; 190,00Gbares authorized:;
108,103,001 and 104,349,507 shares issued anioditsy at December 31, 2012
and December 31, 2011, respectively

Additional paic-in-capital

Accumulated deficit

Total stockholders’ equity

Total Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity

See accompanying notes to consolidated financsgsients

December 31

December 31

2012 2011
$ 1,163,75. $ 961,09:
- 91,00(

3,026,10 1,306,01

654,91 322,21

189,87 157,66t

5,034,65 2,837,97

35,89 11,95:

8,570,44 8,570,44
1,500,29 1,741,97

34,23 34,23

10,104,98 10,346,66

$ 15,17553  $ 13,196,59
$ 1,967,03  $ 1,248,38
74,61 111,40

2,342,04 2,176,20!

117,55 55,52

118,76: 21,36

4,620,00 3,612,89.

133,60 118,63

813,92 853,79

947,53 972,43

1,041,83 892,99
2,223,75, 1,474,95
3,265,58 2,367,95

108,10: 104,35
124,188,41 124,483,16
(117,954,11) (118,344,19)
6,342,40. 6,243,31

$ 15,17553  $ 13,196,59







Revenues, ne
Product

Recurring

Total Net Revenue

Cost of Sales
Product

Recurring

Total Cost of Sales

Gross Profit

Operating Expense

Research and developmt
Selling, general and administrati
Impairment of goodwil
Depreciation and amortization

Total Operating Expens:
Income (Loss) from Operations

Other (Expenses) Incom
Interest expense, n
Gain on derivative liability

TELKONET, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012 AND 2011

Gain on disposal of property and equipm

Gain on sale of product line
Total Other (Expenses) Income

Income (Loss) Before Provision for Income Ta

(Benefit) Provision for Income Taxi

Net Income (Loss

Accretion of preferred dividends and discount

Net loss attributable to common stockholc

Net loss per common sha
Net loss per common sha— basic
Net loss per common she- diluted

Weighted Average Common Shares Outstan- basic
Weighted Average Common Shares Outstan- diluted

See accompanying notes to consolidated finanatistents

2012 2011
8,537,17! 6,654,28.
4,221,20 4,526,68

12,758,37 11,180,96
4,726,24 3,820,75:
1,178,07 1,146,25
5,904,31: 4,967,00.
6,854,05 6,213,95

984,85: 775,32
5,238, 70! 4,652,52

- 3,100,001

260,83 268,57!
6,484,38: 8,796,43
369,67! (2,582,47)
(26,279) (263,707

- 172,471

- 2,168

15,40¢ 829,29
(10,86¢) 740,23!
358,80 (1,842,23)
(31,27)) 60,00(
390,08 (1,902,23)
(897,639 (699,89!)
(507,55¢) (2,602,13)
0.0C (0.02)
0.0( (0.02)
105,788,73 102,570,30
107,387,40 103,815,36




TELKONET, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012 AND 2011

Balance at January 1, 20

Shares issued to directors and
management at approximately
$0.145 per shar

Shares issued to directors for
consulting fees at $0.15 per sh

Shares issued on conversion of
preferred stock at $0.17 per sh

Stock-based compensation expe
related to employee stock optic

Warrants issued with redeemable
convertible preferred stoc

Beneficial conversion feature of
redeemable convertible preferr
stock

Retirement of derivative liability
related to warrant obligatic

Accretion of redeemable preferre
stock discoun

Accretion of redeemable preferre
stock dividenc

Net loss

Balance at December 31, 2011

Common Additional Total
Common Stock Paid in Accumulated Stockholders’
Shares Amount Capital Deficit Equity

101,258,72 $ 101,25¢ $ 122,057,17 $ (116,441,995 $ 5,716,47!
769,70! 77C 116,23( - 117,00t
177,08: 177 24,82 - 25,00(
2,143,99i 2,144 372,85t - 375,00!

- - 26,88° - 26,88

- - 427,89! - 427,89!

_ = 427,89" - 427,89!

- - 1,729,29 - 1,729,29
- - (440,019 = (440,019
- - (259,871 - (259,871
(1,902,23) (1,902,23)

104,349,50 $ 104,35( $ 124,483,16 $ (118,344,19) $ 6,243,31

See accompanying notes to the consolidated finbsteilements
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TELKONET, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY (CON TINUED)
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012 AND 2011

Balance at January 1, 20

Shares issued to directors and
management at approximately
$0.16 per shar

Stock-based compensation expe
related to employee stock optic

Shares issued to preferred share
holders for warrants exercised
$0.13 per shar

Accretion of redeemable preferre
stock discoun

Accretion of redeemable preferre
stock dividend:

Net income

Balance at December 31, 2012

Common Additional Total
Common Stock Paid in Accumulated Stockholders’
Shares Amount Capital Deficit Equity

104,349,50 $ 104,35( $ 124,483,16 $ (118,344,19) $ 6,243,31
638,10 637 101,36 - 102,00t

- - 99,64: - 99,64:

3,115,39i 3,11¢ 401,88 - 405,00t
- - (625,579 - (625,579
- - (272,069 - (272,06:)

390,08 390,08

108,103,00 $ 108,10. $ 124,188,441 $ (117,954,11) $ 6,342,40:

See accompanying notes to the consolidated finbsteigements
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TELKONET, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012 AND 2011

2012 2011
Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Net income (loss $ 390,08 $ (1,902,23)
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) from opations to cash used in operating
activities:
Amortization of debt discounts and financing cc - 191,35
Gain on sale of product lir (15,409 (829,299
Gain on derivative liability - (172,479)
Impairment of goodwil - 3,100,001
Gain on disposal of property and equipm - (2,165
Provision for lease los 132,17- 59,93"
Stock based compensation expe 201,64 168,88
Depreciation of property and equipm 19,15( 26,89¢
Amortization of intangible asse 241,68( 241,68I
Provision for doubtful accoun 7,631 (51,07()
Increase / decrease in
Accounts receivabl (1,727,73) (455,75¢)
Inventories (332,70 156,48
Prepaid expenst (32,219 5,66:
Accounts payabl 718,64« (1,154,56))
Accrued liabilities and expen: 33,66 225,32
Deferred revenu 62,02° 4,26¢
Customer deposit 97,39¢ (78,40¢)
Deferred lease liability 14,97 35,83«
Net Cash Used In Operating Activiti (188,98 (429,64)
Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
Purchase of property and equipm (43,099 -
Proceeds from disposal of property and equipr - 6,64t
Withdrawal (deposit) of restricted ca 91,00( (91,000
Proceeds from sale of product line - 1,000,00!
Net Cash Provided By Investing Activiti 47,90t 915,64!
Cash Flows From Financing Activities:
Proceeds from issuance of note pay: - 700,00(
Payments on notes payal (61,257 (84,800
Payments on notes paya-related party - (25,119
Proceeds from the issuance of redeemable prefstoed - 1,355,001
Proceeds from exercise of warra 405,00( -
Repayment of convertible debentures - (1,606,02)
Net Cash Provided By Financing Activities 343,74 339,06.
Net Increase In Cash and Cash Equival 202,66 825,06:
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning ofébe y 961,09: 136,03(
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the ye $ 1,163,75 $ 961,09:

See accompanying notes to consolidated financsients
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TELKONET, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012 AND 2011

Supplemental Disclosures of Cash Flow Informat

Cash transactions:

Cash paid during the year for inter

Cash paid during the year for income ta

Non-cash transactions:

Issuance of note payable in conjunction with warcamcellatior
Beneficial conversion feature of redeemable coiitMerpreferred stoc
Value of warrants issued with redeemable convertibkferred stoc
Accretion of discount on redeemable preferred s

Accretion of dividends on redeemable preferredis

Retirement of derivative liability related to wamtaobligation
Conversion of preferred stock to common st

See accompanying notes to consolidated financsgstents
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2012 2011
18,32( 181,26:
28,72¢ -

- 50,00(
= 427,89!
- 427,89!
625,57: 440,01
272,06 259,871
- 1,729,29
- 375,00(




TELKONET, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2012 AND 2011
NOTE A - SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A summary of the significant accounting policiepligd in the preparation of the accompanying cddatgd financial statements follows.

Business and Basis of Presentation

Telkonet, Inc., formed in 1999 and incorporatedarrttie laws of the state of Utah, is made up of swwergistic business divisions, EcoSt
Energy Management Technology and EthoStream Higle&pnternet Access (HSIA) Network. Prior to Jaguhr 2007, the Company w
primarily engaged in the business of developingdpcing and marketing proprietary equipment engbiive transmission of voice and ¢
communications over a building’s internal electriw&ing.

In March 2007, the Company acquired substantidllyofathe assets of Smart Systems Internationa(" a leading provider of ener
management products and solutions to customeheib/hited States and Canada.

In March 2007, the Company acquired 100% of thestantling membership units of EthoStream, LLC, avost solutions integratic
company that offers installation, sales and sent@ehe hospitality industry. The EthoStream acijois enabled Telkonet to provi
installation and support for Power Line Carrier (Blproducts and third party applications to custamaeross North America.

In March 2011, the Company sold all its Series £RIroduct line assets to Wisconsin-based Dynamim&s Inc. (“Dynamic Ratingsyinde
an Asset Purchase Agreement.

The consolidated financial statements include ttaants of the Company and its whotiyned subsidiaries, Telkonet Communications,
and EthoStream, LLC. All significant intercompangrtsactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Going Concern

The accompanying consolidated financial statembate been prepared in conformity with accountinipgiples generally accepted in
United States of America, which contemplate coratian of the Company as a going concern. The Compgported net income of $390,(
for the year ended December 31, 2012, but an apgraashflow deficit of $188,985, accumulated defaf $117,954,116 and total curr
assets in excess of current liabilities of only 44%9 as of December 31, 2012.

Although we had net income in 2012, we continuexperience net deficits in cash flows from operatid-or the year ended Decembel
2012, the net cash used in operating activities $188,985. Our ability to continue as a going @nds subject to our ability to genera
profit and positive operating cashflows and/or obteecessary funding from outside sources, inclydiy the sale of our securities or asset
obtaining loans from financial institutions, wheressible. Although we are reporting income for year ending December 31, 2012, we
experience net operating losses in the future hedihcertainty regarding contingent liabilitiestadsubt on our ability to meet such goals
the Company cannot make any representations foalf2013 and beyond. The accompanying consolidatadcial statements do not inclt
any adjustments that might result from the outcoitbese uncertainties.

The Company believes that anticipated cashflows foperations may be insufficient to satisfy its oing capital requirements for at least
next 12 months. If the Compaisyfinancial resources from operations are insugfiti the Company will require additional fundingarder tc
execute its operating plan and continue as a gaingern. The Company cannot predict whether thdétiadal financing will be in the form
equity or debt, or be in another form. The Comparay not be able to obtain the necessary additicesgital on a timely basis, on accepti
terms, or at all. In any of these events, the Compaay be unable to implement its current plansefqransion, repay its debt obligation:
they become due, or respond to competitive pressamy of which circumstances would have a matexihlerse effect on its busine
prospects, financial condition and results of opens.

Management intends to review the options for rgigapital including, but not limited to, throughsatbased financing, private placeme
and/or disposition of assets. Management belithatswith this financing, the Company will be altdegenerate additional revenues that
allow the Company to continue as a going concelrerd can be no assurance that the Company wilubeessful in obtaining additior
funding.

Concentrations of Credit Risk

Financial instruments and related items, which pidély subject the Company to concentrations efddrrisk, consist primarily of cash, c:
equivalents and trade receivables. The Companyegliés cash and temporary cash investments wittitaaality institutions. At times, su
investments may be in excess of the FDIC insuréinie
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TELKONET, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2012 AND 2011

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of reporting cash flows, the Compamsiclers all highly liquid debt instruments purakdhsvith an original maturity date of th
months or less to be cash equivalents.

Restricted Cash on Deposit

During the third quarter of 2011, the Company wemrded a contract that contained a bonding req@remThe Company satisfied t
requirement with cash collateral supported by agvocable standby letter of credit in the amoun$®1,000, which expired December
2012. The amount is presented as restricted cadleusit on the consolidated balance sheet foygheended December 31, 2011.

Accounts Receivable

The Company records allowances for doubtful acabased on customsepecific analysis and general matters such asrduaesessment
past due balances and economic conditions. Thep@oeynwrites off accounts receivable when they bexomcollectible. The allowance
doubtful accounts was $70,807 and $115,400 at DeeeB1l, 2012 and 2011, respectively. Managementifies a delinquent customer ba
upon the delinquent payment status of an outstandioice, generally greater than 30 days pastdite. The delinquent account designe
does not trigger an accounting transaction untdhstime the account is deemed uncollectible. THewaince for doubtful accounts
determined by examining the reserve history and eugtanding invoices that are over 30 days paset akiof the end of the report
period. Accounts are deemed uncollectible on ae-bgscase basis, at managementliscretion based upon an examination of
communication with the delinquent customer and paythistory. Typically, accounts are only escaldate“uncollectible’status after multip
attempts have been made to communicate with tHeroes.

Property and Equipment

In accordance with ASC 3@@roperty Plant and Equipmentproperty and equipment is stated at cost anesetiated using the straidirie
method over the estimated useful lives of the as3éte estimated useful lives range from 2 to l&rge

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Company accounts for the fair value of finahmatruments in accordance with Accounting StaddaCodification (ASC) 820, whi
defines fair value for accounting purposes, esthbli a framework for measuring fair value and edpdrdisclosure requirements regart
fair value measurements. Fair value is definedraexit price, which is the price that would be iiged upon sale of an asset or paid
transfer of a liability in an orderly transactiomttveen market participants at the measurement déke.degree of judgment utilized
measuring the fair value of assets and liabiliieserally correlates to the level of pricing obséility. Financial assets and liabilities w
readily available, actively quoted prices or forigthfair value can be measured from actively qugigdes in active markets generally h
more pricing observability and require less judgtriermeasuring fair value. Conversely, financiadets and liabilities that are rarely trade
not quoted have less price observability and aregdly measured at fair value using valuation niodeat require more judgment. Th
valuation techniques involve some level of managemstimation and judgment, the degree of whiatieisendent on the price transparenc
the asset, liability or market and the nature efdlsset or liability. We have categorized ourriiial assets and liabilities that are recurrin
fair value into a three-level hierarchy in accoramith these provisions.

° Level 1: Unadjusted quoted prices in active markeds are accessible at the measurement datediotiédl, unrestricted asset:
liabilities;
° Level 2: Quoted prices in markets that are novacir inputs which are observable, either direotlyndirectly, for substantial

the full term of the asset or liability;

° Level 3: Prices or valuation techniques that remunputs that are both significant to the fair waloneasurement and
unobservable

Goodwill and Other Intangibles

In accordance with the accounting guidance on gdbdd other intangible assets, we perform an ahimpairment test of goodwill and otl
tangible assets at our reporting unit level, orenfvequently if events or circumstances changewhatld more likely than not reduce the
value of our reporting units below their carryinglve. Amortization is recorded for other intangibkesets with determinable lives using
straight line method over the 12 year estimatedulifiée. Goodwill is subject to a periodic impaient assessment by applying a fair value
based upon a twstep method. The first step of the process compheetair value of the reporting unit with the gang value of the reportir
unit, including any goodwill. We utilize a discoextcash flow valuation methodology to determineftievalue of the reporting unit. Ti
approach is developed from manageneefdrecasted cash flow data. If the fair valuehaf teporting unit exceeds the carrying amount €
reporting unit, goodwill is deemed not to be impdir If the carrying amount exceeds fair value, \acudate an impairment loss. A
impairment loss is measured by comparing the irddir value of goodwill to the carrying amountgdodwill at the reporting unit, with t



excess of the carrying amount over the fair vakemgnized as an impairment loss.

Long-Lived Assets

We review longhived assets for impairment whenever events or gbsiin circumstances indicate that the carryinguarnof an asset may r
be recoverable in accordance with ASC 3@80-Recoverability is measured by comparison ofcdreying amount to the future net cash fl
which the assets are expected to generate. If asshits are considered to be impaired, the impatrioebe recognized is measured by
amount by which the carrying amount of the asseteeds the projected future cash flows arising ftbenasset determined by manageme
be commensurate with the risk inherent to our curbeisiness model.
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TELKONET, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2012 AND 2011

Inventories

Inventories consist of routers, switches and acpesss for Ethostrears’internet access solution and thermostats, seasdrgontrollers fc
Telkonets EcoSmart product suite. These inventories arehpsed for resale and do not include manufactdaingr and overhead. Inventol
are stated at the lower of cost or market deterchibg the first in, first out (FIFO) method. The Cpamy’'s inventories are subject
technological obsolescence. Management evaluatesethrealizable value of #’inventories on a quarterly basis and recordsogigion fol
estimated losses based upon changes in demanaangroduct introductions.

Income (Loss) per Common Share

The Company computes earnings per share under A8 @, “Earnings Per ShareBasic net income (loss) per common share is cord
by dividing net loss by the weighted average nunabfeshares outstanding of common stock. Dilutexbime (loss) per share is computed u
the weighted average number of common and comnuak stquivalent shares outstanding during the y@ifutive common stock equivalel
consist of shares issuable upon the exercise oftmpany's outstanding stock options and warr&usthe years ended December 31, :
and 2011, there were 10,512,394 and 14,786,858skéicommon stock underlying options and warrartuded, respectively.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in confeymiith generally accepted accounting principleguiees management to make estimates
assumptions that affect certain reported amourdg#stlosures. Accordingly, actual results couftedfrom those estimates.

Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes in accordaitteASC 740-10 “Income TaxesUnder this method, deferred income taxes (v
required) are provided based on the difference éetmthe financial reporting and income tax basesseéts and liabilities and net opere
losses at the statutory rates enacted for futuregse The Company has a policy of establishinglaation allowance when it is more lik
than not that the Company will not realize the lignef its deferred income tax assets in the feitur

The Company adopted ASC 740-28; which prescribes a recognition threshold andisueement attribute for the financial stater
recognition and measurement of a tax position takemxpected to be taken in a tax return. ASC 73@48 also provides guidance
derecognition, classification, treatment of int¢@asd penalties, and disclosure of such positions.

Revenue Recognition

For revenue from product sales, we recognize rev@maccordance with ASC 6%, and ASC Topic 13 guidelines that require tbat basi
criteria must be met before revenue can be recedni@d) persuasive evidence of an arrangementseXi} delivery has occurred; (3)
selling price is fixed and determinable; and (4)lemtability is reasonably assured. Determinat@icriteria (3) and (4) are based
managemens judgments regarding the fixed nature of the rmgllprices of the products delivered and the cdllaiity of thost
amounts. Provisions for discounts and rebatesustomers, estimated returns and allowances, arat attjustments are provided for in
same period the related sales are recorded. Tiuelmes also address the accounting for arrangtsmiéiat may involve the delivery
performance of multiple products, services andfgrts to use assets.

Multiple-Element Arrangements (“MEAs”)fhe Company accounts for large contracts that bate product and installation under the Mt
guidance in ASC 605. The Company believes the velofithese large contracts will continue to incesgsrangements under such contr
may include multiple deliverables, a combinationegfiipment and services. The deliverables inclidatie MEAs are separated into m
than one unit of accounting when (i) the deliveemlipment has value to the customer on a s&dmae basis, and (i) delivery of f
undelivered service element(s) is probable andtanbally in our control. Arrangement consideratis then allocated to each unit, delive
or undelivered, based on the relative selling piftRSP”) of each unit of accounting based first wendorspecific objective eviden
(“VSOE") if it exists, second on third-party eviden(“TPE”) if it exists and on estimated sellingcper(“ESP”) if neither VSOE or TPE exist.
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TELKONET, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2012 AND 2011

. VSOE - In most instances, products are sold segdgrat standalone arrangements. Services are also sold sefyatatougt
renewals of contracts with varying periods. Weedmine VSOE based on its pricing and discountiragiices for the speci
product or service when sold separately, consigeggographical, customer, and other economic oketiag variables, as w
as renewal rates or ste-alone prices for the service element

. TPE — If we cannot establish VSOE of selling pficea specific product or service included in a tiplg-element arrangeme
we use thirdparty evidence of selling price. We determine TRSed on sales of comparable amount of similarymtodi
service offered by multiple third parties considgrthe degree of customization and similarity afdarct or service solc

. ESP — The estimated selling price represents fice pt which we would sell a product or servic# Wiere sold on a stanalone
basis. When neither VSOE nor TPE exists for ahwints, we determine ESP for the arrangement etemased on sales, ¢
and margin analysis, as well as other inputs baseils pricing practices. Adjustments for otherrked and Compangpecific
factors are made as deemed necessary in deterntSiR

When MEAs include an element of customer trainihgs not essential to the functionality, efficignor effectiveness of the MEA. Therefi
the Company has concluded that this obligationnomsequential and perfunctory. As such, for MEAat tinclude training, custon
acceptance is not deemed necessary in order tadrebe related revenue, but is recorded when tltallation deliverable is fulfiller
Historically, training revenues have not been digant.

We provide call center support services to propsrinstalled by us and also to properties instdifedther providers. In addition, we prov
the property with the portal to access the Inteté receive monthly service fees from such progefor our services and Internet access
recognize the service fee ratably over the terrthefcontract. The prices for these services aedfand determinable prior to delivery of
service. The fair value of these services is knolwa to objective and reliable evidence from consrand standalone sales. We report
revenues as recurring revenues.

Sales Taxes
Unless provided with a resale or tax exemptionifigate, the Company assesses and collects satesntgales transactions and records
amount as a liability. It is recognized as a lidgpiuntil remitted to the applicable state. TotaVenues do not include sales tax as we cor

ourselves a pass through conduit for collecting ramditting sales taxes.

Guarantees and Product Warranties

The Company records a liability for potential waitsaclaims in cost of sales at the time of salee @mount of the liability is based on the tr
in the historical ratio of claims to sales, thettigal length of time between the sale and resgltvarranty claim, new product introducti
and other factors. The products sold are genecalered by a warranty for a period of one yeathlevent the Company determines thi
current or future product repair and replacemestsexceed its estimates, an adjustment to thesevemswould be charged to earnings in
period such determination is made. For the yeals@December 31, 2012 and 2011, the Company exgedeeturns of approximately 1%
4% of materials included in the cost of sales. For the years eémerember 31, 2012 and 2011, the Company recavdednty liabilities il
the amount of $69,743 and $104,423, respectiveipguthis experience factor range.

Product warranties for the years ended Decembeés 84 follows:

2012 2011
Beginning balanc $ 104,42: $ 100,29:
Warranty claims incurre (66,27%) (101,50%)
Provision charged to expense 31,59¢ 105,63!
Ending balance $ 69,741 3 104,42:

Advertising

The Company follows the policy of charging the sost advertising to expenses as incurred. The Cagnpzcurred $6,778 and $9,577
advertising costs during the years ended Decenthe2®.2 and 2011, respectively.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2012 AND 2011

Research and Development

The Company accounts for research and developrostg i accordance with the ASC 730-10, “ReseanchCevelopment”. Under ASC 730-
10, all research and development costs must begetialo expense as incurred. Accordingly, interegkearch and development costs
expensed as incurred. Thipdty research and development costs are expenseq tve contracted work has been performed or Eston
results have been achieved. Compapgnsored research and development costs relatamthtgresent and future products are expensdte
period incurred. Total expenditures on researchpraduct development for 2012 and 2011 were $9&4a8fl $775,329, respectively.

Stock Based Compensation

We account for our stock based awards in accordavite ASC 71810, Compensation, which requires a fair value megmsant an
recognition of compensation expense for all shemged payment awards made to our employees anctadgeincluding employee stc
options and restricted stock awards. We estimagddin value of stock options granted using thecBi&choles valuation model. This mao
requires us to make estimates and assumptionsdingluamong other things, estimates regarding ¢hgth of time an employee will hc
vested stock options before exercising them, thienated volatility of our common stock price an@ thumber of options that will be forfeit
prior to vesting. The fair value is then amortizeda straightine basis over the requisite service periods efatvards, which is generally
vesting period. Changes in these estimates andnasisuns can materially affect the determinationhaf fair value of stockased compensati
and consequently, the related amount recognizedrirconsolidated statements of operations.

The expected term of the options represents thmatstd period of time until exercise and is basedistorical experience of similar awal
giving consideration to the contractual terms, mgsischedules and expectations of future employa®avior. For 2012 and prior yee
expected stock price volatility is based on thédnisal volatility of the Company’s stock for thelated vesting periods.

Stockbased compensation expense in connection withrpticanted to employees for the twelve months efmsmber 31, 2012 and 2(
was $99,643 and $26,887, respectively.

Deferred Lease Liability

Rent expense is recorded on a stralgtg-basis over the term of the lease. Rent esoaktind rent abatement periods during the teritha
lease create a deferred lease liability which regmes the excess of cumulative rent expense retood#ate over the actual rent paid to date.

Lease Abandonment

On July 15, 2011, the Company executed a sublegseement for approximately 12,000 square feet ahroercial office space
Germantown, Maryland. Because we no longer havesaco this subleased space, we have recordedgeabfa$59,937 in accrued liabiliti
and expenses related to this abandonment during. ZDd June 27, 2012, the subtenant excercisedptienao extend the expiration term
the sublease from January 31, 2013 to Decembef@l5 and we recorded an additional charge of $¥3&2,The remaining liability .
December 31, 2012 and 2011 was $135,975 and $46@3%ectively.

Reclassifications
Certain amounts previously reported have beensgsifiled to conform to the current presentation.
NOTE B — NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENT

In July 2012, the FASB issued ASU No. 2012-02 sfireg Indefinite-Lived Intangible Assets for Impaient”. The revised standard is inten:
to reduce the cost and complexity of testing indtdilived intangible assets other than goodwill for aiyment. It allows companies to perfc
a "qualitative" assessment to determine whethéhduimpairment testing of indefinitered intangible assets is necessary, similar joragct
to the goodwill impairment test. The revised staddalows an entity the option to first assess it@talely whether it is more likely than r
(that is, a likelihood of more than 50 percent)ttha indefinitelived intangible asset is impaired, thus necessgathat it perform th
guantitative impairment testl An entity is not riegd to calculate the fair value of an indefinliteed intangible asset and perform
guantitative impairment test unless the entity ieiees that it is more likely than not that theedds impaired. An entity choosing to perfc
the qualitative assessment would need to identiiy eonsider those events and circumstances ttdiyjidnally or in the aggregate, m
significantly affect an indefinitéived intangible asset's fair value. The reviseahdard provides examples of events and circumstaiie
should be considered, including deterioration i éhntity's operating environment, entifgecific events, such as a change in manageme
overall financial performance, such as negativeanlining cash flows. An entity also should considBy positive and mitigating events
circumstances, as well as whether there have Hemges to the carrying amount of the indefitiited intangible asset. An entity can chc
to perform the qualitative assessment on none, sonadl of its indefinitelived intangible assets. Moreover, an entity capasg the qualitati
assessment and perform the quantitative impairteshtfor any indefinitdived intangible in any period. The revised staddiareffective fo
annual and interim impairment tests performed ifwd years beginning after December 31, 2012.
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TELKONET, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2012 AND 2011
NOTE C — INTANGIBLE ASSETS AND GOODWILL

Total identifiable intangible assets acquired dradrtcarrying values at December 31, 2012 are:

Weighted
Average
Amortization
Accumulated Accumulated Period
Cost Amortization Impairment Carrying Value (Years)
Amortized Identifiable Intangible
Assets:
Subscriber list— EthoStrean $ 2,900,000 $ (1,399,70) $ - $ 1,500,29 12.C
Total Amortized Identifiable
Intangible Asset 2,900,001 (1,399,70) - 1,500,29
Goodwill - EthoStrean 8,796,43 - (3,000,001 5,796,43
Goodwill — SSI 5,874,01 — (3,100,001 2,774,011
Total Goodwill 14,670,44 (6,100,001 8,570,441
Total $ 17,570,444  $ (1,399,70) $ (6,100,00) $ 10,070,74
Total identifiable intangible assets acquired dradrtcarrying values at December 31, 2011 are:
Weighted
Average
Amortization
Accumulated Accumulated Period
Cost Amortization Impairment Carrying Value (Years)
Amortized Identifiable Intangible
Assets:
Subscriber list— EthoStrean $ 2,900,000 $ (1,158,02) $ - $ 1,741,97 12.(
Total Amortized Identifiable
Intangible Asset 2,900,001 (1,158,02) - 1,741,97
Goodwill - EthoStrean 8,796,43 - (3,000,00) 5,796,43
Goodwill — SSI 5,874,01 — (3,100,001 2,774,011
Total Goodwill 14,670,44 (6,100,001 8,570,441
Total $ 17,570,444  $ (1,158,02) $ (6,100,000 $ 10,312,42

Total amortization expense charged to operationthioyears ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 wids6RBD per year.
Estimated future amortization expense as of Dece®ibe?2012 is as follows:

Years Ended December ¢

2013 $ 241,68
2014 241,68l
2015 241,68
2016 241,68
2017 241,68
2018 and after 291,89
Total $ 1,500,29
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2012 AND 2011

The Company does not amortize goodwill. The Compatprded goodwill in the amount of $14,670,44Ga®sult of the acquisitions
EthoStream and SSI during the year ended Decembh&087. The Company evaluates goodwill for impant based on the fair value of
operating business units to which this goodwilhte$ at least once a year. We utilize a discoucasti flow valuation methodology (inco
approach) to determine the fair value of the répgrtinit. At December 31, 2011, the Company deteeahithat a portion of the value Sn
Systems International’s goodwill was impaired bagpdn managemerstassessment of operating results and forecastedutited cash flo
and wrote off $3,100,000 in connection with the @inment. Since acquisition, the Company has writtéf $3,000,000 and $3,100,00C
goodwill for Ethostream and Smart Systems Inteamat, respectively.

Significant assumptions used in our goodwill impent test at December 31, 2012 and 2011 includegected revenue growth ra
operating unit profit margins, working capital lésjediscount rates of 12.9% and 17.5% for Ethostread SSI, respectively and a term
value multiple. The expected future revenue groratks and the expected operating unit profit margiare determined after considering
historical revenue growth rates and operating profit margins, our assessment of future markeemtidl, and our expectations of fut
business performance. The test resulted in no imggit for the year ended December 31, 2012.

The carrying value of our goodwill could changéhi# Company is unable to achieve operating reatilise levels that have been forecaste
if there is a permanent, negative change in thekedatemand for the services offered by the Compaimgse changes could result in
impairment of the existing goodwill balance thatikcbrequire an additional material non-cash chaogzur results of operations.

NOTE D — ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Components of accounts receivable as of Decemh&(3P and 2011 are as follows:

2012 2011
Accounts receivabl $ 3,096,91. 1,421,41
Allowance for doubtful accounts (70,807 (115,400
Accounts receivable, net $ 3,026,10 $ 1,306,01
NOTE E — INVENTORIES
Components of inventories as of December 31, 20822811 are as follows:

2012 2011
Merchandise purchased for res $ 768,81: $ 387,21(
Reserve for obsolescence (113,900 (65,000
Inventory, net $ 654,91. $ 322,211
NOTE F — PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
The Company’s property and equipment at Decembe?@®2 and 2011 consists of the following:

2012 2011
Telecommunications and related equipn $ 117,63  $ 117,63
Development test equipme 113,78 100,83
Computer softwar 189,03: 160,89:
Leasehold improvemen 2,67¢ 2,67¢
Office equipmen 351,30: 349,29
Office fixtures and furniture 237,81 237,81.
Total 1,012,24! 969,15:
Accumulated depreciation (976,34) (957,19)
Total property and equipment $ 35,89¢ $ 11,95

Depreciation expense included as a charge to ineease$19,150 and $26,896 for December 31, 2012ahd respectively.
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NOTE G — ACCRUED LIABILITIES AND EXPENSES

Accrued liabilities and expenses at December 3122Md 2011 are as follows

2012 2011
Accrued liabilities and expens $ 717,73, % 684,82.
Accrued payroll and payroll taxi 345,38 285,04t
Accrued sales taxes, penalties, and inte 1,188,13 1,068,31.
Accrued interes 21,05: 33,60(
Product warranties 69,74 104,42:
Total accrued liabilities and expense $ 2,342,044 % 2,176,20:

NOTE H — LONG TERM DEBT
Business Loan

On September 11, 2009, the Company entered intoam lAgreement in the aggregate principal amour$38f0,000 with the Wiscons
Department of Commerce (the “DepartmentThe outstanding principal balance bears interefiteainnual rate of 2%. Payment of interes:
principal is to be made in the following manne): gayment of any and all interest that accrues fthendate of disbursement commence
January 1, 2010 and continued on the first dayaoheconsecutive month thereafter through and imguBecember 31, 2010; (b) commenc
on January 1, 2011 and continuing on the firstafagach consecutive month thereafter through adldding November 1, 2016, the Comp
shall pay equal monthly installments of $4,426 edcliowed by a final installment on December 1180which shall include all remaini
principal, accrued interest and other amounts olethe Company to the Department under the Loareé&gent. The Company may pre
amounts outstanding under the credit facility inokehor in part at any time without penalty. The ha®sgreement is secured by substantiall
of the Companys assets and the proceeds from this loan werefaséue working capital requirements of the Compariye Loan Agreeme
contains covenants which require, among other fittgat the Company shall keep and maintain 73iegi$ull-time positions and create ¢
fill 35 additional fulltime positions in Milwaukee, Wisconsin by DecemB&r 2012. Under the terms of the Loan Agreementeézh new fu
time position not kept, created or maintained, @wmpany would be required to pay a penalty comgjstif an incremental increase in
interest rate not to exceed 4%. In May of 2012,Goenpany notified the Department that due to tl@emic climate, it is unlikely that the
new full time position covenant will be met by Dedger 31, 2012. On June 18, 2012, the Departmereddgo waive all penalties associ:
with the covenant and keep the loan interest ragelfat 2% for future periods. The outstanding baings under the agreement as of Decel
31, 2012 and 2011 were $203,947 and $252,454, cteply.

Promissory Note #1

On March 4, 2011, the Company sold all its Seri®t.& product line assets to Wisconsin-based Dyn&taiings, Inc. (“Purchaserinder a
Asset Purchase Agreement (“APA”). Per the APA, @mnmpany signed an unsecured Promissory Note (‘Kb due to Purchaser in t
aggregate principal amount of $700,000. The oudtanprincipal balance bears interest at the anraialof 6% and is due on March 31, 2
Note #1 may be prepaid in whole or in f, without penalty at any timeNote #1 contains certain eaoot provisions that encompass both
Company’s and Purchaser’s revenue volumAsiounts earned under the eat provisions shall be applied against Note #Jwme 30, 201
and June 30, 2013. As of June 30, 2012, the nom iduction of principal calculated under thesevisions and applied to the note \
$15,408. Payments not made when due, by maturity acceleratimtherwise, shall bear interedtthe rate of12 % per annunfrom the dat
due until fully paid. As of December 31, 2012, the non cash reductfgpriacipal calculated under these provisions aladsified as nott
payable-current is $25,126. The outstanding praddi@lanceof this note as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 v68¢,$92 and $700,0(
respectively.

Promissory Note #2

From the sale of its Series 5 PLC product line tasske Company used the proceeds received te ilvstantially all of its obligations un
its $1.6 million senior convertible debenture duayM29, 2011 and to cancel the related warrantsroayé1.7 million shares of the Compasy’
common stock. In exchange for the early retirementebt and cancellation of warrants, the Compprgrvided the third party with
unsecured one-year promissory note (“Note #2"60,000 with interest at 5.25%he outstanding principal balance as of Decembep@1!
was $12,746 and the note was paid in full duringdd&012.
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Aggregate annual future maturities of long-termtdebof December 31, 2012 are as follows:

Years ended December ! Amount
2013 $ 74,61
2014 709,95(
2015 51,501
2016 52,47"
888,53!
Less: Current portion (74,61))
Notes payable long ter $ 813,92!

NOTE | - REDEEMABLE PREFERRED STOCK
Series A

The Company has designated 215 shares of prefeiwekl as Series A Preferred Stock (“Series Kjch share of Series A is convertible, a
option of the holder thereof, at any time, intorglsaof our Common Stock at an initial conversioicgof $0.363 per share. In the event
change of control (as defined in the purchase ageaewith respect to the Series A), or at the hotdeption, on November 19, 2014 and f
period of 180 days thereafter, provided that aiti&@% of the shares of Series A issued on the$@riOriginal Issue Date remain outstan:
as of November 19, 2014, and the holders of at lzamajority of the then outstanding shares of&seA provide written notice request
redemption of all shares of Series A, we are reguio redeem the Series A for the purchase price qohy accrued but unpaid dividends.
Series A accrues dividends at an annual rate ofo8%e original purchase price, payable only whas, and if declared by the Boarc
Directors of Telkonet.

On November 16, 2009, the Company sold 215 shdr8gmes A with attached warrants to purchase ameggte of 1,628,800 shares of
Companys common stock at $0.33 per share. The Seriesafeshwere sold at a price per share of $5,000 acil Series A share
convertible into approximately 13,774 shares of gmn stock at a conversion price of $0.363 per shEne Company received $1,075,
from the sale of the Series A shares. Since thee$Sé may ultimately be redeemable at the optiorthef holder, the carrying value of
preferred stock, net of discount and accumulatedi€inds, has been classified as redeemable préfetwek on the consolidated balance sh

A portion of the proceeds were allocated to therarés based on their relative fair value, whiclaled $287,106 using the Black Scholes of
pricing model. Further, the Company attributed adbieial conversion feature of $70,922 to the Sehepreferred shares based upon
difference between the effective conversion pricthose shares and the closing price of the Comigazsgmmon stock on the date of issua
The assumptions used in the Blégkholes model were as follows: (1) dividend yiefd0%; (2) expected volatility of 123%, (3) weigt
average riskree interest rate of 2.2%, (4) expected life gfdars, and (5) estimated fair value of Telkonet mam stock of $0.24 per she
The expected term of the warrants represents tiraated period of time until exercise and is basedistorical experience of similar aws
and giving consideration to the contractual terifise amounts attributable to the warrants and beiakftonversion feature, aggrega
$358,028, were recorded as a discount and dedfrai@dthe face value of the preferred stock. Thealist is being amortized over the pe
from issuance to November 19, 2014 (the initialeragtion date) as a charge to additional paidapital (since there is a deficit in retai
earnings).

The charge to additional paid in capital for anmation of Series A discount and costs for the yeaded December 31, 2012 and 2011
$74,614 and $71,604, respectively.

For the years ended December 31, 2012 and 201hawe accrued dividends for Series A in the amo@i§rd,228 and $80,916, respecti
and as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, there aralative accrued dividends of $251,076 and $176,8d&ectively. The accrued divide
have been charged to additional paidtapital (since there is a deficit in retainednéags) and the net unpaid accrued dividends bddndht
the carrying value of the preferred stock.

Series B

The Company has designated 538 shares of prefeioekl as Series B Preferred Stock (“Series Bgch share of Series B is convertible, a
option of the holder thereof, at any time, intorsisaof our Common Stock at an initial conversioicgof $0.13 per share. In the event
change of control (as defined in the purchase ageaé with respect to the Series B), or at the hiddeption, on August 4, 2015 and fc
period of 180 days thereafter, provided that a6tl&8% of the shares of Series B issued on the$8riOriginal Issue Date remain outstan
as of November 19, 2014, and the holders of at l@anajority of the then outstanding shares of €3eB provide written notice request
redemption of all shares of Series B, we are reguio redeem the Series B for the purchase price goly accrued but unpaid dividends.
Series B accrues dividends at an annual rate obB%e original purchase price, payable only whas, and if declared by our Boarc
Directors.
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On August 4, 2010, the Company sold 267 sharesede$ B with attached warrants to purchase an ggtgeof 5,134,626 shares of
Companys common stock at $0.13 per share. The SeriesBshare sold at a price per share of $5,000 actdl 8aries A share is converti
into approximately 38,461 shares of common stock @nversion price of $0.13 per share. The Compaggived $1,335,000 from the sali
the Series B shares. Since the Series B may ultlynae redeemable at the option of the holderctreying value of the preferred stock, ne
discount and accumulated dividends, has been fitabais redeemable preferred stock on the condetidaalance sheets.

In accordance with ASC 470 TopicD'ebt” , a portion of the proceeds was allocated to the amésrbased on their relative fair value, wi
totaled $394,350 using the Bla8choles option pricing model. Further, the Compattsibuted a beneficial conversion feature of $399, tc
the Series B preferred shares based upon the ddifferbetween the effective conversion price ofehslsares and the closing price of
Company’s common stock on the date of issuance.aShemptions used in the BlaBkholes model are as follows: (1) dividend yield@%b;
(2) expected volatility of 123%, (3) weighted awgegariskfree interest rate of 1.76%, (4) expected life mraximately 4 years, and
estimated fair value of Telkonet common stock ofl$0 per share. The expected term of the warrapi®sents the estimated period of
until exercise and is based on historical expegesfcsimilar awards and giving consideration to¢batractual terms. The amounts attribut
to the warrants and beneficial conversion feataggregating $788,700, have been recorded as audisaad deducted from the face valu
the preferred stock. The discount is being amattiaeer the period from issuance to November 1942@ke initial redemption date) a
charge to additional paid-in capital (since thera deficit in retained earnings).

On April 8, 2011, the Company sold 271 additiorredres of Series B with attached warrants to puechasaggregate of 5,211,542 shares ¢
Companys common stock at $0.13 per share. The Serieashvere sold at a price per share of $5,000 actd 8eries B share is convert
into approximately 38,461 shares of common stock @nversion price of $0.13 per share. The Compargived $1,355,000 from the sali
the Series B shares. Since the Series B sharesuhiiaately be redeemable at the option of the égldhe carrying value of the Serie
shares, net of discount and accumulated dividéraispeen classified as redeemable preferred stottlecconsolidated balance sheet.

In accordance with ASC 470 TopicDebt” , a portion of the proceeds were allocated to theamés based on their relative fair value, wi
totaled $427,895 using the Bla8choles option pricing model. Further, the Compattsibuted a beneficial conversion feature of $823, ¢
the Series B shares based upon the difference éetthe effective conversion price of those sharesthe closing price of the Company’
common stock on the date of issuance. The assunsptiged in the BlacBcholes model are as follows: (1) dividend yidl®@%; (2) expecte
volatility of 129%, (3) weighted average riflee interest rate of 0.26%, (4) expected life mfraximately 3.5 years, and (5) estimated
value of Telkonet common stock of $0.12 per sh@ihe. expected term of the warrants represents timaed period of time until exercise ¢
is based on historical experience of similar awamnad giving consideration to the contractual terfifee amounts attributable to the warr:
and beneficial conversion feature, aggregating ##85 have been recorded as a discount and dedfrotadthe face value of the Serie:
shares. The discount is being amortized over thimgdrom issuance to November 19, 2014 (the ihitedemption date) as a charge
additional paid-in capital (since there is a deficiretained earnings).

The charge to additional paid in capital for anmation of Series B discount and costs for the yeaded December 31, 2012 and 2011
$550,960 and $368,415, respectively.

For the years ended December 31, 2012 and 201lhawe accrued dividends for Series B in the amodn$1®7,836 and $178,9¢
respectively, and as of December 31, 2012 and 204t are cumulative accrued dividends of $41983@ $221,997, respectively. 1
accrued dividends have been charged to additiomiaHp capital (since there is a deficit in retainedné@gs) and the net unpaid accr
dividends been added to the carrying value of tieéepred stock.

Preferred stock carries certain preference rightdedailed in the Comparsy/Amended Articles of Incorporation related to btith payment «
dividends and as to payments upon liquidation efgrence to any other class or series of capitakstf the Company. Liquidation prefere
of the preferred stock is based on the followindeor first, Series B with a preference value 0f882,833 and $2,686,997, second, Seri
with a preference value of $1,176,076 and $1,1@®,,84 of December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectiBeith series of preferred stock are e
in their dividend preference over common stock.
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NOTE J — CAPITAL STOCK

The Company has authorized 15,000,000 shares tdrprd stock (designated and undesignated), witlaravalue of $.001 per share. As
December 31, 2012 and 2011 the Company has 2153fhshares of preferred stock designated and 183 2® shares issued and outstant
designated Series A and B preferred stock, respdygti

The Company has authorized 190,000,000 sharesnainom stock with a par value of $.001 per shareofAdecember 31, 2012 and 2011
Company has 108,103,001 and 104,349,507 commoasstssued and outstanding, respectively.

During the year ended December 31, 2012, the Coynjzaned 638,104 shares of common stock to dire@od management for servi
performed through December 31, 2012. These shaesvalued at $102,000, which approximated thevidlue of the shares when they w
issued.

During the year ended December 31, 2012, 3,1158%@ries B preferred stock warrants were exerdisesh equal number of common sh
at an exercise price of $0.13 per share. Procesdéved from these exercised warrants were $405,000

During the year ended December 31, 2011, the Comjzanied 769,709 shares of common stock to direa@ad management for servi
performed through December 31, 2011. These shaesvalued at $117,000, which approximated thevidlue of the shares when they w
issued. In addition, 177,083 shares were issueddiarrent member of the CompasyBoard of Directors for consulting fees incurrebipto,
but not paid until after, his election to BoardDifectors. These shares were valued at $25,000.

During the year ended December 31, 2011, 30 slo&rgsries A redeemable preferred stock were coedaa 413,223 shares of common s
and 45 shares of Series B redeemable preferrekl wigre converted to 1,730,767 shares of commorkstoc

NOTE K — STOCK OPTIONS AND WARRANTS

Employee Stock Options

The Company maintains two stock option plans. Tie plan was initiated in the year 2000 and waat#ished as a long term incentive
for employees and consultants, including boardigfctbr members. The second plan was establish@d18 also as an incentive plan
officers, employees, non employee directors, prosge employees and other key persons. It is guated that providing such persons wi
direct stake in the Company’s welfare will assuteetter alignment of their interests with thos¢haf Company and its stockholders.

The Company considers employee stock options a ooemi of the compensation package necessary @cttretain and motivate k
employees. The value of these options is dependemh an increase in the Compaggtock price relative to the exercise price, whi
determined on the date of grant. Due to declinethénCompanys stock price, the exercise prices of the optioelsl oy Messrs. Tienc
Sobieski and Koch exceeded the Compamgcent stock price to the extent that the Congigars Committee became concerned that
original incentive value had been substantiallyleliexl. In order to restore the incentive valuehef $tock options held by these key execut
the Compensation Committee determined that it wake best interests of the Company to modify MesBienor, Sobieski and Kochstocl
options based on the Compasystock closing price on December 30, 2011. Theratse price for Mr. Tienor was modified from $1.&
$.14. The exercise prices for Messrs. Sobieskikoth were modified from $1.00 to $.14 per share.

The following table summarizes the changes in oytioutstanding and the related prices for the shafrethe Compang’ common stock issu
to employees of the Company under a non-qualifragleyee stock option plan.

Options Outstandin Options Exercisabl
Weighted Average
Remaining
Number Contractual Life Weighted Average Number Weighted Average
Exercise Price Outstanding (Years) Exercise Prict Exercisable Exercise Prict

$ 0.01- $0.1¢ 175,00( 48z $ 0.14 175,000 $ 0.1¢4
$ 0.16- $0.9¢ 915,64. 9.42 0.1¢ 630,64. 0.1¢
$ 1.00- $5.9¢ 190,00( 2.71 3.14 190,00( 3.1¢4
1,280,64. 780 $ 0.62 995,64. $ 0.7¢
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Transactions involving stock options issued to ey@és are summarized as follows:

Number of Weighted Average
Shares Price Per Shar

Outstanding at January 1, 20 2,548,800 $ 1.57
Grantec - -
Exercisec - -
Cancelled or expired (1,863,801 1.1C
Outstanding at December 31, 2011 685,00( 1.4¢
Grantec 915,64. 0.1¢
Exercisec - -
Cancelled or expired (320,00() 1.1¢
Outstanding at December 31, 2012 1,280,64. 0.62

The expected life of awards granted representpéhied of time that they are expected to be outbtan We determine the expected life bs
on historical experience with similar awards, gg/iconsideration to the contractual terms, vestifedules, exercise patterns and yesting
and postvesting forfeitures. We estimate the volatility afr common stock based on the calculated histovigatility of our own commo
stock using the trailing 24 months of share priagadrior to the date of the award. We base #iefree interest rate used in the Blggthole
option valuation model on the implied yield curigravailable on U.S. Treasury zecoupon issues with an equivalent remaining ternmakty
the expected life of the award. We have not paid@sh dividends on our common stock and do ntitipate paying any cash dividend:
the foreseeable future. Consequently, we use pacted dividend yield of zero in the BlaBicholes option valuation model. We use histo
data to estimate pre-vesting option forfeitures eewbrd shardased compensation for those awards that are expémtvest. In accordar
with ASC 718-10, we adjust shabased compensation for changes to the estimatexpdcted equity award forfeitures based on a
forfeiture experience.

The following table summarizes the assumptions tsegstimate the fair value of options granted myithe year ended December 2012, L
the Black-Scholes option-pricing model:

2012
Expected life of option (year: 5-1C
Risk-free interest rat 1.64-2.22%
Assumed volatility 95-105%
Expected dividend raf 0
Expected forfeiture rat 17%

The total estimated fair value of the options gednduring the year ended December 31, 2012 was,83B2The total fair value of underlyi
shares related to options that vested during tteesyended December 31, 2012 and 2011 was $85,aB261887, respectively. Futi
compensation expense related to nested options is $38,446 as of December 31, ZHR aggregate intrinsic value of the vested optigas
zero as of December 31, 2012 and 2011.

Total stockbased compensation expense recognized in the ateisal statements of operations for the years efbdmgmber 31, 2012 a
2011 was $99,643 and $51,887, respectively.

Non-Employee Stock Options

Transactions involving options issued to non-emeémsyare summarized as follows:

Number of Weighted Average
Shares Price Per Shar

Outstanding at January 1, 20 425,000 % 1.0C
Grantec - -
Exercisec - -
Canceled or expired - -
Outstanding at December 31, 2011 425,000 $ 1.0C
Grantec - -
Exercisec - -
Canceled or expired (425,001 1.0C

Outstanding at December 31, 2012 - $ =




F-21




TELKONET, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2012 AND 2011

There were no non-employee stock options vesteidgitiie years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011.
Warrants
The following table summarizes the changes in wasrautstanding and the related prices for theeshaf the Compang’common stock issu

to nonemployees of the Company. These warrants werdegtam lieu of cash compensation for services peréal or financing expenses i
in connection with placement of convertible prederstock.

Warrants Outstandin Warrants Exercisabl
Weighted Average
Remaining
Number Contractual Life Weighted Average Number Weighted Average
Exercise Price Outstanding (Years) Exercise Prict Exercisable Exercise Prict
$ 0.1: 7,439,241 312 % 0.1: 7,439,24C $ 0.1z
0.3¢ 1,628,801 1.8¢ 0.3¢ 1,628,80( 0.3t
0.6C 800,00( 0.3¢ 0.6C 800,00C 0.6(¢
3.0C 962,37t 1.5C 3.0C 962,37€ 3.0C
10,830,41 258 $ 0.4F 10,830,41¢ $ 0.4t

Transactions involving warrants are summarizecHsvis:

Weighted

Number of Average
Shares Price Per Shar
Outstanding at January 1, 20 22,104,74 $ 0.51
Issued 5,546,87. 0.2C
Exercisec - -
Canceled or expire (12,729,694 0.3¢
Outstanding at December 31, 2( 1492192 $ 0.5(
Issued - -
Exercisec (3,115,39C 0.1z
Canceled or expire (976,114 2.2(
Outstanding at December 31, 2( 10,83041 $ 0.4¢

The Company issued 5,211,542 warrants to Serieefmed stockholders, 208,462 to an investment fis partial compensation for serv
performed in connection with the private placemeinthe Companys Series B Convertible Stock and 126,868 to for@envertible Senic
Note holders during the year ended December 311.20Lring the third quarter of 2012, 3,115,390i&eB warrants were exercised a
exercise price of $0.13 per share. The Companydidssue any compensatory warrants during thesyeaded December 31, 2012.

The purchase price of the warrants issued to CtibleiSenior Note holders was adjusted from $3a1$3.00 per share and approxima
125,274 additional warrants were issued duringyttee ended December 31, 2011 in accordance witaritiglilution protection provision
the Convertible Senior Notes Payable Agreement“@geeement”)dated October 27, 2005, upon the occurrence ddicegvents as defined
the Agreement.

In March 2011, the Company received proceeds @fdR1000 from the sale of a product line and relagskts. In connection with the sale

Company was lent an additional $700,000. The Coypaed these proceeds to retire substantiallyfats mbligations under its $1.6 millis
senior convertible debenture due May 29, 2011 arwdicel 11,730,769 of related warrants.

F-22




TELKONET, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2012 AND 2011

NOTE L — RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

From time to time the Company may receive advaifroes certain of its officers in the form of saladgferment and cash advances, to |
short term working capital needs. These advanassmot have formal repayment terms or arrangemekdsof December 31, 2012 and 2!
there were no such arrangements.

Additionally, Mr. Davis, current board member, rizeel 177,083 shares of common stock during the gaded December 31, 2011 in payn
for $25,000 of consulting fees incurred, and aattioe by the Company, prior to Mr. Davis’ electitmthe board of directors.

NOTE M — INCOME TAXES

The Company follows ASC 740-10 “Income Taxes” whielquires the recognition of deferred tax liatstiand assets for tlespected futu
tax consequences of events that have been inclndbd financial statement or tax returns. Undés thethod, deferred tax liabilities and as
are determined based on the difference betweendialstatements and tax bases of assets andtiesbilsing enacted tax rates in effect fol
year in which the differences are expected to

A reconciliation of tax expense computed at theustay federal tax rate on income (loss) from ofieres before income taxes to the actual
income tax (benefit) / expense is as follows:

2012 2011

Tax provision (benefits) computed at the statutatg $ 121,990 $ (626,36
State taxes, net of Federal ben 9,33( (101,32)
Book expenses not deductible for tax purpc 12,96¢ 14,07(
Other 99( (46,06

145,28: (759,67
Change in valuation allowance for deferred taxt@sse (176,55 819,67!
Income tax (benefit) provision $ (31,27) % 60,00(

During 2012, approximately $29,000,000 of stateapetrating loss carryforwards expired and the Compewered its effective state tax ra
The aggregate effect of these items resulted @daation to the allowance of approximately $3,308,0

Deferred income taxes include the net tax effe€taad operating loss (“NOL"carry forwards and the temporary differences betwibe
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for ficial reporting purposes and the amounts usedéamie tax purposes. Significant compon
of the Company's deferred tax assets are as fallows

2012 2011
Deferred Tax Assets;
Net operating loss carry forwar $ 33,38493 % 36,302,10
Intangibles 259,95: 776,29:
Credits - 20,00(
Other 1,207,241 1,355,844
Total deferred tax assets 34,852,13 38,454,24
Deferred Tax Liabilities:
Intangibles - -
Other - (30,44:)
Total deferred tax liabilities - (30,447
Valuation allowance (34,852,13) (38,423,80)
Net deferred tax asse $ - $ -

The Company has provided a valuation reserve agdiesull amount of the net deferred tax assetsahse in the opinion of management,
more likely than not that these tax assets will®tealized.
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At December 31, 2012 the Company had net operdtisg) (‘NOL") carryforwards of approximately $86,000,000 for b&#deral and ste
income tax purposes which will expire at variouteddrom 2020 — 2032.

The Companys NOL carryforwards may be significantly limitedder Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code (IRNOL and tax cred
carryovers are limited under Section 382 when thigegesignificant “ownership changa’ defined in the IRC. During 2005 and in priorrg
the Company may have experienced such ownershimgelahat could have imposed such limitations.

The limitation imposed by Section 382 would placeamnual limitation on the amount of NOL carryovénat can be utilized. When 1
Company completes the necessary studies, the arnbW®L carryovers available may be reduced sigaiitly. However, since the valuat
allowance fully reserves for all available carrymssehe effect of the reduction would be offsetayeduction in the valuation allowance.

The Company files income tax returns in the U.8efal jurisdiction and various state jurisdictiombe Company is generally no longer sut
to U.S. federal income tax examinations by tax autiles for years before 2007 and various statésrée2007. Although these years are
longer subject to examination by the Internal Rexe®ervice (IRS) and various state taxing autlesithet operating loss carryforwe
generated in those years may still be adjusted egamination by the IRS or state taxing authorifi¢isey have been or will be used in a fu
period.

The Company follows the provisions of uncertain pmsitions as addressed in FASB Accounting Starsd®@uadification 740-10-63- The
Company recognized no increase in the liability dorecognized tax benefits. The Company has n@etsition at December 31, 2012
which the ultimate deductibility is highly certalvut for which there is uncertainty about the timiofysuch deductibility. The Compa
recognizes interest accrued related to unrecogrtedenefits in interest expense and penaltiespierating expense. No such interes
penalties were recognized during the periods ptedeifhe Company had no accruals for interest amalfies at December 31, 2012.

Company’s utilization of any net operating lossrgfarwards may be unlikely due to its continuingdes.

NOTE N — COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Office Leases Obligations

The Company presently leases approximately 14,60ars feet of office space Milwaukee, Wisconsin for its corporate headquartérie
Milwaukee lease expires in March 2020.

The Company presently leases 16,416 square feebrofmercial office space in Germantown, Marylandhe Tease commitments expire
December 2015. On July 15, 2011, Telkonet execatesiiblease agreement for 11,626 square feet obffie space in Germantov
Maryland. The subtenant received one month reateaent and had the option to extend the subleaseJanuary 31, 2013 to December
2015. On June 27, 2012 the subtenant exercisedptien to extend the expiration of the term of thelease from January 31, 201:
December 31, 2015.

Commitments for minimum rentals under non canceléddses at December 31, 2012 are as follows:

2013 $ 402,95:
2014 414,26
2015 426,39¢
2016 169,15!
2017 174,09¢
2018 and thereafter 410,18
Total $ 1,997,05!

Expected rent payments to be received under subaeement at December 31, 2012 are as follows:

2013 $ 130,94:
2014 134,87:
2015 138,91¢
Total $ 404,73

Rental expenses charged to operations for the pealesd December 31, 2012 and 2011 are $537,103608J265, respectively. Rental incc
received for the year ended December 31, 2012 ahtl ®as $127,126 and $41,852, respectively.
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Employment and Consulting Agreements

The Company has employment agreements with ceofaits key employees which include ndisclosure and confidentiality provisions
protection of the Company’s proprietary information

Jason L. Tienor, President and Chief Executive deffiis employed pursuant to an employment agreemigm us dated May 1, 2012. I
Tienor's employment agreement has a term of two (2) yedrich may be extended by mutual agreement of énggs thereto, and provid
among other things, for an annual base salary 00 $®0 per year and bonuses and benefits basedrdanternal policies and participation
our incentive and benefit plans.

Jeffrey J. Sobieski, Chief Operating Officer, ispoyed pursuant to an employment agreement witdaisd May 1, 2012. Mr. Sobieski’
employment agreement has a term of two (2) yeanghamay be extended by mutual agreement of thiégegathereto, and provides for a k
salary of $190,000 per year and bonuses and bemefied upon our internal policies and participaitioour incentive and benefit plans.

Richard E. Mushrush, Chief Financial Officer, is mayed pursuant to an employment agreement, dategd M 2012. Mr. Mushrush’
employment agreement is for a term expiring on Mlag013, is renewable at the agreement of thegsaatnd provides for a base salary 1
least $110,000 per year.

Gerrit J. Reinders, Executive Vice Presid&hbbal Sales and Marketing, is employed pursuardrieemployment agreement, dated Mg
2012. Mr. Reindes employment agreement is for a term expiring oty Ma2013, is renewable at the agreement of thiteegaand provides fi
a base salary of at least $150,000 per year.

Matthew P. Koch, Chief Operating Officer, is emmdypursuant to an employment agreement, dated Ma@12. Mr. Kochs employmer
agreement is for a term expiring on May 1, 2013emewable at the agreement of the parties anddeevor a base salary of at least $130
per year.

In addition to the foregoing, stock options areiquically granted to employees under the ComparR010 equity incentive Plan at
discretion of the Compensation Committee of therBaa Directors. Executives of the Company areibl@gto receive stock option grar
based upon individual performance and the perfoomarf the Company as a whole.

Litigation
The Company is subject to legal proceedings anuinslavhich arise in the ordinary course of its base Although occasional adve
decisions or settlements may occur, the Comparigusd that the final disposition of such mattersutth not have a material adverse effec

its financial position, results of operations quiidity.

Linksmart Wireless Technology, LLC +Mobile USA, Inc.

On July 1, 2008, Linksmart Wireless Technology, LId€ Linksmart, filed a civil lawsuit in the EasteDistrict of Texas against EthoStre:
LLC, our wholly-owned subsidiary and 22 other defemts (Linksmart Wireless Technology, LLC v. T-Mobile UB®,, et al, U.S. Distric
Court, for the Eastern District of Texas, MarsHaiision, No. 2:08-cv-00264). This lawsuit allegémt the defendantservices infringe
wireless network security patent held by Linksmaitksmart seeks a permanent injunction enjoinimgdefendants from infringing, induc
the infringement of, or contributing to the infremgent of its patent, an award of damages and afftxfiees.

Defendant Ramada Worldwide, Inc. provided us wittiae of the suit and demanded that we defend addninify it pursuant to a venc
direct supplier agreement between EthoStream andVBipplier Services, Inc., a Ramada affiliate (whewe agreed to indemnify, defe
and hold only Ethostream supported Ramada propdriemless from and against claims of infringemeAfer a review of that agreemen
was determined that EthoStream owes the duty tendeénd indemnify with respect to services providgdrelkonet to Ramada and it |
assumed Ramada’s defense.

The parties in the lawsuit agreed to and the Contered a stay of the litigation pending the cosicin of a reexamination proceeding in
U.S. Patent and Trademark Office relating to thiemtainvolved in the lawsuit. The case was reoddnesarly 2012 based on the expecte
that a reexamination certificate would be issuedheyPatent Office. The reexamination certificads been issued. After the case resume:
parties agreed to a “transfer” of the case fromBhstern District of Texas to the Central Disto€tCalifornia. To accomplish the “transfer,”
with the agreement of the parties, the Texas casedismissed and a new action was filed in Califoom April 5, 2012. Cinksmart Wireles
Technology, LLC v. T-Mobile USA, Inc., et &.S. District Court, for the Central District Gflifornia, Southern Division, No. SACV 12-522-
JST). The parties have answered the complaint filetie new action and the court has set the tibgacalendar with trial set for June 20
Management is unable to predict the ultimate regwiwof this matter.
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Stephen L. Sadle v. Telkonet, Inc

On 5, 2011, a former executive, Stephen L. Sadiees Telkonet, Inc. and Telkonet Communications, ("Telkonet") with a Complaint
the Circuit Court for Montgomery County, MD allegitfl) Breach of Contract, (2) Promissory Estoppeffiinental Reliance and (3) violati
of Maryland's Wage Payment and Collection Act. Tiivee claims in his Complaint each arose out ofdleigarture in 2007. In terms of rel
Mr. Sadle sought "severance compensation” in theuatmof $195,000, treble damages, interest, amdregys’'fees. This lawsuit was resol\
as part of a voluntary settlement prior to the deited jury trial beginning on May 14, 2012. On J&§, 2012, the Parties filed a J
Stipulation of Dismissal with prejudice.

In the case ofStephen L. Sadle v Telkonet, Incthe parties executed a settlement agreement andrg release on July 2, 2012
$100,000. Terms of the agreement called for Tedkém make an initial payment of $30,000 on Jun20L,2 and Telkonet made an additic
scheduled payment on September 1, 2012. The remgdialance was paid in three equal installmentsbych 1, 2013.

Indemnification Agreements

On March 31, 2010, the Company entered into Indéoation Agreements with director William H. Daviand executives Jason L. Tier
President and Chief Executive Officer and Jeffregabieski, then Chief Operating Officer. On Novem8, 2010, the Company entered int:
Indemnification Agreement with Richard E. Mushrusiten Acting Chief Financial Officer.

The Indemnification Agreements provide that the @any will indemnify the Company's officers and diags, to the fullest extent permit
by law, relating to, resulting from or arising oot any threatened, pending or completed action, suiproceeding, or any inquiry
investigation by reason of the fact that such effier director (i) is or was a director, officempgloyee or agent of the Company or (ii) is or
serving at the request of the Company as a direofficer, employee or agent of another corporatimartnership, joint venture, trust or ot
enterprise if he acted in good faith and in a maheereasonably believed to be in or not opposededest interests of the Company, and,
respect to any criminal action or proceeding, hadreasonable cause to believe his or her condust wdawful. In addition, tt
Indemnification Agreements provide that the Compuaiily make an advance payment of expenses to afigeofor director who has entel
into an Indemnification Agreement, in order to cogeclaim relating to any fact or occurrence agsirom or relating to events or occurrer
specified in this paragraph, subject to receipafundertaking by or on behalf of such officer aedor to repay such amount if it st
ultimately be determined that he is not entitlebéandemnified by the Company as authorized utfdetndemnification Agreement.

Sales Taxes

The Company engaged a sales tax consultant ta asgistermining the extent of its potential sal@s exposure. Based upon this anal
management determined the Company had probablesabgor certain unpaid obligations, including et and penalty, of approximat
$1,100,000 including and prior to the year endeddb@er 31, 2011. The Company has approximately0$10R0 accrued for such exposur
of December 31, 2012. The Company continues to getize liability by establishing VDAs with the ajmalble states, which establishe
maximum lookback period and payment arrangements. Howevdheifaforementioned methods prove unsuccessful lmdCbmpany

examined or challenged by taxing authorities, theists possible exposure of an additional $620,00f) including any applicable interest
penalties.

During 2012, the Company successfully executedpaid in full VDAs in five states totaling approxitedy $23,000 and is current with -
subsequent filing requirements. It has submitted\gvith an additional twentgeven states and awaits notification of acceptahwe. state
offer no voluntarily disclosure program. The Compatso confirmed that one customer had self asde$seher reducing our liability a
expense associated with that liability by approxeha$151,000.

The following table sets forth the change in tHes#ax accrual during the years ended December 31:

2012 2011
Balance, Beginning of ye: $ 1,068,31. $ 776,67:
Collections 277,37: 162,97!
Provisions (119,25) 75,97¢
Interest and penaltie 32,69¢ 89,02(
Payments (70,99¢) (36,33))
Balance, End of year $ 1,188,13 % 1,068,31.
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NOTE O — BUSINESS CONCENTRATION

For the years ended December 31, 2012 and 201single customer represented 10% or more of our netarevenues.

Purchases from two suppliers approximated $2,600,0073%, of total purchases for the year endeceBwer 31, 2012 and approxima
$1,700,000, or 68%, of total purchases for the peaied December 31, 2011. Total due to these supplhiet of deposits, was $384,099 an
as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

NOTE P — FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The Companyg derivative liabilities are measured at fair vadurea recurring basis and are classified in level the fair value hierarchy usi
inputs which are not actively observable eitheeclly or indirectly. The Company also carries @erintangible assets that are measured ¢
value on a nomecurring basis, which are classified in level 3ta# fair value hierarchy using inputs which are actively observable eith

directly or indirectly.

The following table sets forth certain Company &sses of December 31, 2011 which are measuredratdle on a nomecurring basis
level within the fair value hierarchy. These arassified based on the lowest level of input thaigsificant to the fair value measurement:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Goodwill-SSI $ — $ - $ 2,774,01i $ 2,774,011
Total $ — $ — $ 2,774,01i $ 2,774,01i

The table below sets forth a summary of changésarfair value of the Company’s Level 3 assets @@al-SSI) measured on a nareurring
basis for the year ended December 31, 2011 (nonegl2012):

Balance at beginning of ye $ 5,874,01
Impairment of carried value (3,100,001
Balance at end of period $ 2,774,001

The table below sets forth a summary of changdisdriair value of the Compars/Level 3 financial liabilities (derivative liabiyi) for the yes
ended December 31, 2011 (none during 2012):

December 31, 201

Balance at beginning of ye $ 1,901,77!
Repayment of debt, cancellation of warrants arateedl derivative liability (1,158,73))
Change in fair value of derivative liabili (172,479
Retirement of derivative liability related to wamtaobligation (570,569
Balance at end of year $ -

NOTE Q — SUBSEQUENT EVENT
During 2012, the Company was awarded a contradt avibonding requirement. The Company satisfied¢l@irement in the first quarter

2013 with an irrevocable standby letter of credilateralized by cash in the amount of $382,00@& ¥iter of credit expires September
2013.
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BAKER TILLY

Baker Tilly Virchow Krause, T1P
115 S 84% St Ste 400
Milwaukee, WI 33214-1475

tel 414 777 5500

fax 414 777 5555

bakerally.com

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTINGRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference inRbgistration Statements on Form S-8 (File No. 388909, 333-175737) of Telkonet, Inc.
of our report dated April 1, 2013, relating to tensolidated financial statements of Telkonet,,lmhich includes an explanatory paragraph

relating to Telkonet, Inc.'s ability to continueagoing concern and appears on page F-3 of thim&irReport on Form 1RB-for the year ende
December 31, 2012.

Baln 724 Vinchows Yoz, 2

Milwaukee, Wisconsin
April 1, 2013



EXHIBIT 31.1

CERTIFICATIONS
I, Jason L. Tienor, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual reporfFonm 10-K of Telkonet, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this reportsduoa contain any untrue statement of a mater@ldaomit to state a material fact necessa
make the statements made, in light of the circunt&ts under which such statements were made, ntgadisg with respect to the per
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the finandiatesnents, and other financial information includiedhis report, fairly present in all mate|
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgtfe@ periods presented in this report;

4, The registrant other certifying offiseand | are responsible for establishing and raaiimg disclosure controls and procedure
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%(nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-1
(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

€)) Designed such disclosure controlsaodedures, or caused such disclosure controlpammdures to be designed undel
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtbsidiaries, is made known to us by ot
within those entities, particularly during the metiin which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control oveaficial reporting, or caused such internal cortk@r financial reporting to be desigi
under our supervision, to provide reasonable amsareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of financial statem
for external purposes in accordance with geneealbepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of trgisteant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presémthds report our conclusio
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contintsprocedures, as of the end of the period cougyeldis report based on such evaluation;

(d) Disclosed in this report any changethe registrang internal control over financial reporting thatcooed during th
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter that hatenally affected, or is reasonably likely to maadly affect, the registrarg’internal control o
financial reporting; and

5. The registrastother certifying officer(s) and | have disclosbdsed on our most recent evaluation of internatrobover financie
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and theitaadmmittee of the registrast’board of directors (or persons performing theiveden!
functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and redal weaknesses in the design or operation ofriatecontrol over financial reportil
which are reasonably likely to adversely affectriagistrant’s ability to record, process, summaaizd report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not materidiat involves management or other employees who laggnificant role in tt
registrant’s internal control over financial repogt
Date: April 1, 2013
By: /s/ Jason L. Tienor

Jason L. Tienor
Chief Executive Officer




EXHIBIT 31.2

CERTIFICATIONS
I, Richard E. Mushrush, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual reporfFonm 10-K of Telkonet, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this reportsduoa contain any untrue statement of a mater@ldaomit to state a material fact necessa
make the statements made, in light of the circunt&ts under which such statements were made, ntgadisg with respect to the per
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the finandiatesnents, and other financial information includiedhis report, fairly present in all mate|
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgtfe@ periods presented in this report;

4, The registrant other certifying offiseand | are responsible for establishing and raaiimg disclosure controls and procedure
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%(nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-1
(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

€)) Designed such disclosure controlsaodedures, or caused such disclosure controlpammdures to be designed undel
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtbsidiaries, is made known to us by ot
within those entities, particularly during the metiin which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control oveaficial reporting, or caused such internal cortk@r financial reporting to be desigi
under our supervision, to provide reasonable amsareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of financial statem
for external purposes in accordance with geneealbepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of trgisteant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presémthds report our conclusio
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contintsprocedures, as of the end of the period cougyeldis report based on such evaluation;

(d) Disclosed in this report any changethe registrang internal control over financial reporting thatcooed during th
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter that hatenally affected, or is reasonably likely to maadly affect, the registrarg’internal control o
financial reporting; and

5. The registrastother certifying officer(s) and | have disclosbdsed on our most recent evaluation of internatrobover financie
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and theitaadmmittee of the registrast’board of directors (or persons performing theiveden!
functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and redal weaknesses in the design or operation ofriatecontrol over financial reportil
which are reasonably likely to adversely affectriagistrant’s ability to record, process, summaaizd report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not materidiat involves management or other employees who laggnificant role in tt
registrant’s internal control over financial repogt
Date: April 1, 2013
By: /s/ Richard E. Mushrush

Richard E. Mushrush
Controller and Acting Chief Financial Office




EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Telkonet.l{the "Company") on Form 1K-for the year ended December 31, 2012 as filed it
Securities and Exchange Commission on the dateh@he "Report"), I, Jason L. Tienor, Chief ExagatOfficer of Telkonet, certify, pursuz
to 18 U.S.C. section 1350, as adopted pursuargd¢tdd 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requiremeatsSection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Ex@eAct of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report faiggesents, in all material respects, the financtaidition and results of operations of
Company.

/s/ Jason L. Tienor
Jason L. Tienor

Chief Executive Officer
April 21, 2013




EXHIBIT 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Telkonet.I{the "Company") on Form 1K-for the period ended December 31, 2012 as filal the
Securities and Exchange Commission on the datehéhe "Report"), I, Richard E. Mushrush, Conteoland Acting Chief Financial Offic
of Telkonet, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. sectl®50, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of tHeaBSas-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requiremeatsSection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Ex@eAct of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report faiggesents, in all material respects, the financtaidition and results of operations of
Company.

/s/ Richard E. Mushrush
Richard E. Mushrush

Controller and Acting Chief Financial Officer
April 1, 2013




